
DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Jerry Robinson
Council President Justin Head
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilmember Debra Jones
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, MARCH 2,2021
7:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

City Manager Jackie Gorman
City Attorney Fred Koberlein
City Clerk Latricia Wright
Deputy City Manager CJ Zimoski

OPENING PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

GES AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

ITEM-2-PUBLI PARTICIPATION

ITEM_3_CONSENT AGENDA (pp 4-7)
a equncil minutes from February 16.2021

ITEM-4- BUSINESS

A. STAFF AND BOARD AND COUNCIL UPDATES
o CITY MANAGER JACKIE GORMAN
o DEPUTY CITY MANAGER CJ ZIMOSKI
o COUNCIL

B. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: FORECLOSURE: CV14-14 WAYMAR.
AT 81I E. NOBLE AVE. - CITY P LA

JONES. (pp 8)

ITEM_5-NEWBUSINESS-

A. RESOLUTION 2021-05: A RESOL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON.
FLORIDA: APPQINTING DR. KENNETH SCHWIEBERT TO THE COMMUNITY

EVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR A
16.2021 AND ENDING MARCH I 5. : AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE

PLANNER LAURA JONES 9-l

1



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCIL MEETING

B. WITH POSSIBLE ACTI
PROPOSED COT]NTRY LANE ESTA SUBDIVISION. - CITY PLANNER
LAURA JONES. (pp 11-26)

C. ON 2021-12: A RE
OF WILLISTON. FI,ORIDA. APPROVIN THE ASSIGNMENT OF A LEASE WITH
DENNIS MOF,T,T,MAN TO REVOLUTION AVIATION. INCORPORATED: AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. - A T MANAGER BENTON STEGALL.
@p 27-a6)

D LUTION 2O2I-I A
COIJNTY. FI,ORIDA. ACCEPTING AN AGREEMENT WITH VALLEY

ON LLC
PRESIDENT TO EXECI]TE THE CT AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE

AGER 47-51
E. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTIO : REVIEW OFFERS FOR CITY OWNED

MANAGER JACKIE 2-
F NCUSSION WITH PO LE

PAVILION AFTER DR. KF,NNF,TH _ COUNCILMEMBER JONES

ITEM - 6 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

ITEM-7_

ITEM_8-ADJOURNMENT

NEXT SCHE,DI]I,ED ME,ETIN MARCH 16.2021AT 6:00 P.M.

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone

https ://uryvw.qotomeet. me/CitvOfWill istonFL

You can also dial in using your phone.
(For supported devices, tap a one-touch number below to join instantly.)

United States: +1 (646) 749-3122
- O netouch : tel:+ 1 6467 4931 22..645230685#

Access Code: 645-230-685

YouTube Link: https://www.youtube.com/channeVUCKt 1 468kcNjBS2AYgOaBsRQ

Clicking this link will enable you to see and hear the Council meeting.

*x Because this meeting is being held in person, Florida law requires that it be open to the physical

2



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCIL MEETING

presence of the public. To maintain proper health precautions, we will maintain 6' separations in the
meeting room and we will offer additional seating in another area for the overflow if needed. Also, we
encourage the use of face masks in the meeting room. (Limitation of 50 people)

We invite you to continue participating in our council meetings via telephone or the lnternet as we have
been doing for the last several weeks. **

Council Meeting Procedures for members of the Pubhc

1 . All cell phones to be tumed off when entering the Council Chambers;
2. Once the audience has taken their seat and the meeting begins, there will be no talking between audience members

during the course of the Council meeting. If anyone continues to talk within the audience and is called down 3 times
during the course of the meeting, on the third time that person will be escorted out of the Council meeting;

3. The audience must be recognized by the President before being allowed to address the Council;
4. The member of the audience that is recognized will proceed to the podium, state their name for the benefit of the City

Clerk, prior to offering comments on a given matter;
5. The audience member will be limited to not more than 5 minutes to speak based on Resolution 2012-07;
6. There will be no personal attacks made by any member in the audience toward a sitting Council member and no

personal attacks made by any Council member toward a member of the audience;
7 . There will be no conversation between a member of the audience that has been recognized and any other member of the

audience when speaking while at the podium;
8. If an audience member wants to speak more than the allotted 5 minutes allowed then that person should make a request

to City Hall so that the item may be placed on the agenda.

Minutes of the City Council meeting may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but not transcribed
verbatim. Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or
alrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter will be bome by the
requesting party.

In accordance with Section 286.0105. Florida Statutes, notice is given that ifa person wishes to appeal a decision made by the
City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such
purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record ofthe proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence
upon which the appeal is based.

In accordance with Section 286.26. Florida Statutes. persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to participate in
this meeting should contact the Mayor through the City Clerk's office no later than 5:00 P.M. on the day prior to the meeting.

3



DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Jerry Robinson
Council President Justin Head
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilmember Debra Jones
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2O2I
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

City Manager Jackie Gorman
City Attorney Fred Koberlein
City Clerk Latt''cia Wright
Deputy City Manager CJ Zimoski

PLEDGE OF
Opening prayer and Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Robinson.

ITEM _ 1 _ ADDITIONS. DELETIONS. ES AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Councilmember Jones moved to accept agenda as written. Vice-President Robinson seconded.
Motion carried 5-0 by saying'oAye".

ITEM _ 2 _ PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Jackie Appling Chair of the Friends of Cornelius Williams Community Park told the Council the
goup has been working hard at the park and have removed the brown grass around the baseball
and softball field and are now ready to replace the bases. Ms. Appling said she is working the
baseball coach from the Williston Middle/High School and he's willing to assist with getting
some bases for the fields. Ms. Appling also thanked Officer Mike Rolls with the Williston PD
for his help as well. Councilmember Jones asked Ms. Appling did she know the cost of the
bases. Ms. Appling replied for temporary bases the cost is $30 and $45 each for permanent
bases.

ITEM - 3 - PROCLAMATION: R G NATIONAL FFA WEEK. FEBRUARY 2OTH

ARY 27 2021 -}/4.A R
Mayor Robinson presented the Williston FFA with the Proclamation recognizing February 20rh
through February 27th asNational FFA week.

ITEM - 4 - CONSENT AGENDA - Councilmember Jones moved to approve the Consent
Agenda. Councilmember Cox seconded. Motion carried 5-0 by saying'oAye".

o Council minutes from February 2. 2021
o Approve an expense of up to $92.000 for the installation of Primary Electric

Infrastructure into and on the undeveloned of the Williston Municioal Aimort
as budgeted in the 202012021 Capitol Improvement Budget.

4



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCILMEETING

ITEM-5-OLDBUSINESS

A. BOARD AND COUNCIL UPD
a CITY MANAGER JACKIE GORMAN - City Manager Gorman discussed the RFP

for Solid Waste and told the Council there will be a mandatory meeting on Friday for
all of companies that are interested and RFP's are due back to the City by March 16th

at 1l a.m. City Manager Gorman said all RFP 's will be opened at2 p.m. that day.
City Manager Gorman introduced the new Human Resource Director Melisa
Thompson to the Council. Ms. Thompson told the Council she was excited to be on
board and looks forward to working with everyone.

a DEPUTY CITY MANAGER CJ ZIMOSKI - Deputy Manager Zimoski told the
Council he had received an email from Jerry Warren with George Warren, LLC and it
looks like the City will be receiving a credit in the amount of $13,100 from Duke
Energy. Deputy Manager Zimoski also discussed the decrease in the electric bill
from FMPA and next quarter we should see a bigger decrease in cost.

a COUNCIL - None

B. DISCTJSSION WITH POSSIRI,E ACTI : REOUEST FOR RELEASE OF CITY
GENERAL PENSION

MANAGER City Manager Zimoski discussed with the Council
the formula they used has the City Manager Gorman receiving a payout in the amount of
$3,052.25 from the General Pension. Council asked City Manager Gorman was she okay
with the recommended payout amount and she replied yes. Councilmember Jones moved
to release the City Manager payout from the Pension in the amount of $3,052.25.
Councilmember Ross seconded. Motion carried 5-0 by saying "Aye".

C. DISCT]SSION WITH POSSIBT,E ACTTON REVIEW OF CITY CLERK JOB DUTIES
TERMINE WHO CITY CLERK

JUSTIN HEAD. - City Manager Gorman told the Council, she came up with the Clerk
job descriptions from small towns and combined it with some of the duties the Clerk was
already doing. After reviewing the job description, Mayor Robinson asked that "special
Events" be added back to her duties and Councilmember Jones asked that both Pension
boards be added on as well. City Manager Gorman also noted that the FMIT was not on
the list and that will be added back as part of the Clerk's duties. After a brief discussion
Council decided to have the City Clerk report to the Council and if she's going to be out
to advise the Council by email. Vice-President Robinson moved to approve the City
Clerk job description with the changes mentioned. Councilmember Jones seconded.
Motion carried 5-0 by saying "Aye".

ITEM_6_NEWBUSINESS-

5



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCILMEETING

A. RESOLUTION 2O21-04: A RESOLIITIO OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON. LEVY
COI]NTY. FI,ORIDA APPO INTING RICHARD MERANDO TO THE CITY OF

TON PLANNING
MARCH 1.2024. - CTTY LAURA JONES. - City Planner Jones presented
Resolution 2021-04 to the Council. Mr. Merando was in attendance and said he has been
a resident of Williston since 2017 and he's looking forward to serving on the Planning
andZoningCommission. Councilmember Jones moved to approve Resolution 2021-04
appointing Richard Meraondo to the Planning andZoningCommission. Councilmember
Cox seconded. Motion carried 5-0 by saying "Aye".

B. CONTRACT AWARD FOR COI,T, SERVICES: CITY MANAGER GORMAN
City Manager Gorman discussed with the Council the response she received back for
Collection Services. City Manager Gorman said the Company she's looking at will do a
I5o/o charge on top of what is owed to the City, that way the City will receive 100% of
the debt collected. City Manager Gorman said once she get the contract ready she will
bring this item back in front of the Council with more details. Councilmember Jones
wanted to know if we could add an additional l1oh charge on top of the 100% for debit
and City Attorney Fred Koberlein answered yes.

C. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBI,F, CTION: JOB DESCRIPTION FOR
IT{FNP I\/ A TTr}NT Ttr'IJI\TOLOGY /IT\ MAN A(]F'P - 

(1TTV ]\/I ANAGtrII GNPI\/TA'I\T

City Manager Gorman told the Council, the City has been outsourcing their IT work
since Fran left and we need someone in the office at all times. The City pay out a lot of
fees and some of this can be done in-house said City Manager Gorman. City Manager
Gorman asked the Council to review the job description (position is fulltime with
benefits) and the pay grade (16). City Manager Gorman said she has discussed adding
this job position with Finance Director Stephen Bloom and he said we would be saving
money if we hire a fulI time IT person. After some discussion Vice-President Robinson
moved to approve the job description and pay grade for an Information Technology
Manager. Councilmember Cox seconded. Motion carried 5-0 by saying "Aye".

ITEM - 7 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION -Jackie Appling Chair of Friends of the Cornelius
Williams Community Park told the Council she had just received some donations towards the
purchase of bases for the softball and baseball field and need guidance on how to handle the
money. President Head told Ms. Appling the City could not take the money, because that would
create a conflict and that's something she needed to talk over with her committee members.

ITEM_8- OUNCEMENTS - Councilmember Ross asked has anything been done about
the apartment above Pesso's Pawn Shop. City Manager Gorman told Councilmember Ross they
are working on it. Mayor Robinson said something needed to be done about the building
immediately. Councilmember Jones asked did the people apply for the Special Zoning for the
gun show. City Planner Laura Jones replied yes and everything is a go. Vice-President
Robinson asked had the stop sign at Winn Dixie been taken care of, City Manager Gorman said
yes.

6



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM - 9 - ADJOURNMENT with no future business Vice-President Robinson moved to
adjourn at7:19. Councilmember Jones seconded. Motion carried 5-0 by saytng'oAye".

NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING MARCH 2. 2021 AT 7:00 P.M.

7



Date: March 2,2021

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: FORECLOSURE

REQUESTED BY: LAURA JONES, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & GRANTS

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

On January 19,2021this property was discussed at the City Council meeting. As a
reminder, the Board of Adjustments and Code Enforcement voted to proceed with
foreclosure. I was asked to research the environmental clean-up cost and timeline. After
talking to the DEP representative, it is clear that the clean-up has been delayed and final
tank pulls will not be complete for another 2years or more. Then monitoring will take at
least another year.

The property owner can clean-up the property (remove trastg cut grass) while or before
remediation begins. They told Code Enforcement they didn't think they were allowed on
the property. We have informed them that they are, but they have not returned to
conduct any clean-up.

Cost to the property owner is a $500 deductible for the remediation.

LEGAL REVIEW: NA

RECOMMENDED ACTIoN: Hire clean-up crew and charge the property owner

FISCAL IMPACTS: As of January 19,2021the lien amount is $98,650. To move forward it
will cost approximately $2,300 provided there are no additional attorney's fees, and the property
owner will be charged a $500 deductible to the DEP for the next step in remediation.

ATTACHMENTS: None

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED DISAPPROVED

8



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA; APPOINTING DR.

KENNETH SCHWIEBERT TO THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR A FOUR

YEAR TERM BEGINNING MARCH L6, 2O2I AND ENDING MARCH 15, 2025; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: City Planner/ CRA Director

PREPARED BY: City Planner/ CRA Director

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: ln 20L0, the CRA was reorganized by the City Council
causing the elimination of two seats. lt was at this time that the new appointment
schedule and seat assignments were made. This resolution would reappoint Dr Kenneth
Schwiebert for another four years beginning March L6, 2O2t and ending March 15,

2024. Dr Schwiebert currently serves as Vice-Chairman of the Community
Redevelopment Agency and has expressed a desire to continue to serve on the Board.
Chapter L5 of the City's Code of Ordinances mandates the appointment of these
members to the Agency Board (Sec. 18-53. - Appointment of successor commissioners.
After the initial terms of appointment have expired, successor commissioners shall be
appointed by the City Council and will hold office for a term of four years).

LEGAL REVIEW: None

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt resolution appointing Dr. Kenneth Schwiebert to the
Community Redevelopment Agency for a four year term beginning March L6, 2O2L

and ending March L5,2025.

ATTACHMENTS:

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

9



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2021-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA;
APPOINTING DR. KENNETH SCHWIEBERT TO THE
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR A FOUR
YEAR TERM BEGINNING MARCH 16, 2021 AND ENDING
MARCH 15,2025; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Williston City Council desires to continue the efforts of
the Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Williston in
redeveloping Downtown Williston; and,

WHEREAS, Dr. Kenneth Schwiebert has served on the Agency Board
prior and has expressed his desire to continue to serve; and,

NOIAL THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified
and confirmed as being true and correct and are incorporated herein by
this reference.

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves Resolution 2021,-05.

Section 3. All Resolution or parts of Resolutions, in conflict with
this Resolution are hereby repealed.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon
adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 2nd day
of March 2021..

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

Justin Head, Vice-Ptesident
Williston City Council

ATTEST: LatictaWright
City Clerk

10



Date: March 2,2021

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: PRELIMINARY PLAT

RBQUESTED BY: LAURA JONES, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & GRANTS

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

Applicant:

Project:

A-Plus Homes,Inc. DBA Armstrong Homes

Proposed Countrv Lane Estates

LOCATION MAP/AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

NORTH

SUMMARY

Country Lane Estates falls under the description for a Major Subdivision and must follow Chapter
56 - SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, of the Willison Code of Ordinances. This project is
located off of NW 4th Avenue, between NW 4th Street and NW 7th Street, with ttre general
location of 510 NW 4th Street. A-Plus Homes, Inc. A Florida Corporation D/B/AArmstrong
Homes is the owner and Steven M. McMillan, PSM, Surveyor is the Agent.

I

11



Date: March 2,2021

Country Lanes Estates consists of 33.418 acres and 100lots. Ingress/ egress to the development is
located off of NW 7th Street with 7l lots inside the subdivision and 29 lots with entrances located
of either NW 7th St., NW 4th Ave. or NW 4th Street.

All lots meet the minimum setback requirements for a Rl-A zoning district. The final plat will
have exact lot sizes that should meet minimum lot requirements. Easements have beenput in place
on the plat to accommodate electric utilities, water and sewer. It has not yet been decided if the
development will request gas services. Easements, tracts and right-of-w;ys will be dedicated to
the public. Common areas and drainage easements will be conveyed to thl Country Lane Estates
Homeowners Association for ownership, management and maintenance.

The City has the following requests/ requirements that will be discussed further during the
development and improvement plan process (including but not limited to):

. Draft of Covenants

' Draft Developer's Agreement with timeline for each phase (including the commercial
component).

. SWFWMD & FDOT permits (if applicable). Tree Survey

. Traffic Survey

. Sec 60-221landscape buffer may apply to certain areas. Sec 60-222 confirm you will comply. Sec 56-10 confirm you will comply. Sec 58 confirm you will comply. Access for natural gas recornmended. All interior services should be run from NW 7th Street. All Exterior services should run off the adjacent street. Lift station should be upgraded

Approval of this development complies with the Land Development Code for Major subdivision;
therefore, staff recommends approval subject to staff com*.ni..

LEGAL REVIEW: None

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION: Approved

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation to approve Preliminary Subdivision plat for
Country Lane Estates.

ATTACHMENTS: Preliminary plat and Application

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED DISAPPROVED

2

12



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY (PLAT) PLANS SUBMISSION CHECKLIST
(Applies to Non-Minor Subdivisions)
Transmit to: Planning & zoning Department, p.o. Box 160, wlLLtsroV, FL g2696
Phone: 352.528-3060 opt 3,
This Checklist is based on the relevant provisions of Chapter 56-16 - Submission of
Preliminary Plat - of the WILLISTON, FL Code of Ordinances. The Code is available
online at www.municode.com.
General Requirements
fl Contact the Zoning Director, who will in coordination with Levy County E g11 office to
get an approved subdivision name.
D Schedule a pre-application conference with this Department as early as possible
in the project development process.
! No subdivision application shall be scheduled for processing untilthis
Department determines the application package is complete, including allfees paid.
n Since the application package completeness determination mlst occur
PRIOR the agenda deadline date, do not wait until the deadline to submit
the.application package. Application are reviewed by internal departments as well as
by the department. .f!9 Zoning department will create a staff report which is frovided to
the reviewing Board with the agenda.
f] Resubmissions must also comply with the agenda deadline date.
! All subdivision submissions must comply with the relevant requirements of
Section 56-16- Preliminary plans.
E Be advised that no site clearing activity, other than the minimum necessary for
surveying purposes, may be initiated untilthe construction plans 

"r" "pprou"iAND a tree removal permit has been issued.
! All plats, plans & specifications must be signed & sealed by a Florida registered
surveyor, landscape architect or engineer, as appropriate for the document.fl Preliminary plans are reviewed by tfre Planning and Zoning Commission and the City
Council.
I Phasing must be arranged so that each phase can stand alone and function
adequately with regard to required improvements, infrastructure and facilities,
submitJ2 copies of the preliminary plans at the appropriate scate on 24" by 36,
sheets P-LIJS 12 copies of the plans reduced to 1 1,; by 17,, pLUs and elecironic pDF
format of the drawings.
! Submissions may require prove of tifle insurance.

Prelim inary Application City of Williston Page 1 of4

13



I f,oo

SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLANS SUBMISSION CHECKLIST

Preliminary plat _ 1

Preliminary plat _ 1

Rec'd Requirement

-15 Lots $ 250 Appl ication Fee -Plus $12 Per lot or parcel
6 lots and up $500 Application Fee .plus $12 Per lot or parcet

Legal description of the subject site - courd be on the boundary survey
complete name and mailing address of the property owner, deveroper and engineer
Tract boundaries with dimensions
North arrow, date of preparation and other pertinent regend information A
location map at no greater than 1000 scale
Zoning of the site AND adjacent parcels on all sides
Plat book and page of the site
Typical lot size by phase, if necessary
A copy of the draft HOA deeds, restriitions and covenants
Streets and easements of adjacent land
Topography map in NGVD conlours at 1-foot intervals
Site conditions including, but not limited to, existing watercourses, drainage ditches, bodies ofwater, we{land, 10O-year flood elevations, and suriounding prrysicat feat,ri"" g"i*iing -- --
PtPtttv lines, buildings, transmission lines, water and/or iewer lines, bridges, culveits, citylimits and utility easements on the subject site AND the adjacent parcets Levy County E-911approved street names, street types, pavement widths ana rigni-or way dimensions andtypical cross section diagrams
ldentification of the storm water disposal method and connection to the city potable water,wastewater and reuse systems
Proposed off-site roadway and other pubric improvements in the area
Phasing the subdivision, if any - lots must be numbered consecutively for the whole project
Dedications of sites and roadways to the public ldentifylmap
the on-site soils
A summary list of the total acres, lots, minimum lot area and lineal feet of streets
An environmental assessment pursuant to the provisions of chaptei 114 ofthis code Apreliminary concurrency review document
Adequately address zoning, buffering, environmentally sensitive area, upland habitat,
loodplains, wetlfierd, aquifer protection, historic/archeorogicar ,nJiilri.A cD in PDF format which includes ALL the application package text and graphicsCERTIFICATION

Owner or Signature Date

l' the undersigned, do hereby certify that I have read this checklist and understand the requirementsdescribed therein. I further unaeritand that only apptication p""i"g"" that have boen determinedcomplete by the Department prior to the agenda deadline wili ue scr,"duled for processing.

Preliminary Application City of Williston Page 1 of4

14



APPLICATION FOR SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLANS
(Applies only to division of land into 6 or more parcels)
(Please type or write very clearly)
county 911 Approved subdivision Name: countrv Lane Estates
Parcel Number: #04TT7 -OOO-OA

Legal Description: ATTACHED
General Location andlor Street Add
Project Area: 3O.41BAC
# of Units: 100
Density:
Zoning: R-1-A
Typical Lot Size: 0.290-0,S83AC # of phases:
# Lots & Acres by Phase:
# Acres of Recrea tion Area; 0.032AC # Acres of Weflands:
# Acres of Roads & RlW: 4.611Ac pubric or private streets@-
Has this site been subject to any other development permit action in the last two years?
No 

- 

lf Yes, provide the type of action and date of final action below.

Attach a copy of the Propefty Owner's Authorization form

ress: 510 4th St. Wit liston. FL

Applicant Address
Applicant Phone #: Fax#
and/or E-mail

**t******i***************rfl**l*******trltth*h**ii**it**,#t*Ht****tt********t*t**********tt****r***a*ti*ri**ta***t,

Owner Name:
E

Owner Address:
Owner Phone #:352-266-8946 Fax # and/or E-rnail: chris@armstornqhomes.netPersontobecontactedregardingquestionsaboutthisffieer,
architect, attorney, etc.):
Contact Name: Steve M. McMillen. pSM
Email: Steve@mcsurveying. com

Applicant Name: Steve M, McMillen. pSM
Email Steve(Omcsu rvevinq. com

Contact Address: 444 NW Maln Street, Williston, Fl 326g6
Phone #:352-528-0277
Fax#: nla

Preliminary Application City of Williston Page 1 of4

15



CERTIFICATION
l, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I have read the application and the relevant guidance
material and understand the requirements described therein and that I will fully compty with all
City, State and Federal regulations applicable to this project. I understand tnaime application
fee is non-refundable. I further understand that I am responsible to reimburse the City for the
actual advertising costs AND the actual consultants' review fees, if any. Said fees shill be paid
within 30 days of receipt of the City's invoice OR further processing of the application will cease
until the invoice is paid in full.
Applications need to be submitted by the lstof the month to be considered at the next Planning &
Zoning Commission meeting. Any and all supporting documents that need to be reviewed by tf,e
Commission need to be submitted by the 15t' of the iame month to be included in the packei for
review.
I understand that only application packages that are determined com plete by the

will be scheduled for review.

nt re
\\- %-2a

Date
OWNER'S APPLICATION AUTHORIZATION STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF
LEVY
(Required lf the property owner of record is not the applicant)
Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared _ who
being by me first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says:
1. That he/she is the property owner of the subject parcel(s) in this application.
2' That he/she desires to apply for a Subdivision Preliminary Plans on land generally
located at (insert legal description)

3. That he/she
to accomplish

has appointed $t"eve M. McMillen, PS.M to act as agent in his/her behalf
the above.

Owner's Signature
This is to certify that on
authorized to take ackn

2O-before me, an officer duly
aforesaid, personally appeared

produced
SEAL

owledgments in the State and County
he/she is personally known to me or has

as identification and Did (Did Not)Take an Oath.

Signature of Acknowledger

Acknowledger Name

Serial Number My Commission Expires

Preliminary Application City of Williston Page 1 of4

16



.l a

--__

McMillen Surueying, lnc.
444 Northwest Main Street

Wlliston, Florida, 92696
Office: 352528-6212

November 9,2020

-

I \

I, chris Armstrong, llergby give stephen M. McMiilen, p.s,M,, president of McMillensurveying, lnc, the authoritytoag] aq my Authorlzed Ageni to iacititite tn" bl"ithg process
lPon "c-o11try Lane Estates" on the folldwing parcel lyiig in section gt, rownJhip-12 south,Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida:

Parcel lD# 04777 -000-OO, Williston, FL.

State of Florida
County of Levy

Armstrong

Notary Public, State of Florida
At Large

m 'ffi
BETINDA J EGOII,IATIN

Conmbrlon tG€ 940301

Expirct Janurry 29, 2024
8ffil.d tlru Eqdg.tNohry SrxL$

17



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA 6.T7 OWNER'S POLICY Modificatio

SCHEDULE A

Name and Address of Title lnsurance company: westcor Land Title lnsurance company, g75 concourse parkway
South, Suite 200, Maiiland, Ftorida 3ZT5i, phone No.: (a07) 629-5g42.

State: Florida

County: Levy

Address Reference: 510 NW 4th Street, Williston, Florida 32696

File Number:
91814

cy Number: Date of Policy; Premium
$900.00OP -25-F L1 624-698 1 806 Nsysm6sp 8,20'19

Amount of lnsurance:
$165,000.00

2, The estate or interest in the Land that is insured by this policy is: Fee simple

3' Title is vested in: A-Plus Homes, lnc., a Florida oorporation d/b/a Armshong Homes by warranty deed executed byPark Place Estates, LLC, a Florida Limited-Llabitidy company ton-ptus Homes, lnc., a Floridl.rp.ir.iii"-olo7;
lrmshong Hgme.s. datad November 6, 2018, filed'Novembei g, 2018 ln ofncijii.cfros Book 1474, F;g" 6ai,Public Records of Levy county, Florida, conveying saio prope*ylescribed herein,

4. The Land referred to in this policy is described as follows:

' The North 1/2 of the North 1/2 of Southwest 1/4 of Southwest 1/4 Except the East 25 feet thereof; and the\ ruorthwest 1i4 of €outh*..t ra e*.fntirlg East 2s i""iidr;A a[ in Sectibn 31, Township 12 South, Range 19East; Except the followlng described parcels;

Less and Except:

\ commence at the southwest corner of Lots 7 0f J.J. Mixson subdivision of the North 1/2 0f secfion 31. Townshio\ 12. south, .fa1oe 19 East, thence run south gso feet, tneG;i! _East 840 r""i, trence"irliTi,r"rii.jrir:lt!
railroa9^right-of-way 1 182 feet, thence South 482 feet to the point of g"ginnini, af 

"" 
oeriiiUed in DeeJ 6ooi fPage 18't.

Less and Except:

Commence at the West 1/4 section corner 9f fectlo1 31, proceed thence south 87 degreea 14 minutes 35seoonds East a distance of 646,85 feet to the Poinl of Beginning contlnuing ttrence Souttr Bi dugrees 1i minub;\ 35 seconds East a dietance of 321 feet thence $outh 0-O oegleei 47 minutes Sg seconds Weet a dlstance of\ l3q'18 feot; thence soulh s7 degrr"r dz'rinutes 35 seconJJiJrt 
" 

distance of 395.16 feet;thence south 00degrees 39 minutes 50 seconds West a distance of 203.85 feet; thence North Si aegiJes-1a minutes 3b secondsWest a distanoe ol 715'20 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutej 50 seconds Eait a distance of 636.00 feet tothe Point of Beginning.

at 01:13 PM

1. Name ofl Hornes, lnc., a Florida corporation d/b/a Armstrong Homes

Note: This policy is of no force and effect unless Schedule A and Schedule B are attached together with any added pages
incorporated by reference.

oP-25s / ALTA 6-17-06 owner's poticy schedure A and B (with Florida Modifications) wlTtc Edflion zi8l14)

18



PANY
TA

WESTC OR LA DN TITLE UNS coMRANCE
AL 6-l -067 EROWN 's POLICY FIorida Modifications

Less and Except:

commence at the Northwest corner of the southwest 1/4 of seclion 31, Township 12 soutn, Range 1g Easl,\ iif_,iif,:iffi:iflii"*!{i,fi! "*_:",?fr;,FJ!j1*j*3j',:Hj$;;trl:T's,'??$j'H"ff;#Jlhence south 1 degrees 20 mlnutes 00 ieconds.ruit Cos ieut Nen.* North g9 degrees 10 minutes 3g secondswest 608'15 feet to-the East right-of-way llne of Northwest s*Jbnin streef thence ttbnn e degrees 15 minutes o0seconds west along and with the saic Eist right-oi-;rt tn;; Nilirwest $evennr srre"iG inu point of Eeginning.

Less and Except:

For a point of reference, commenc€ at lhe Northwest corner of southwest 1/4 0f section 31 thence south ggdegrees 12 minutes '10 seconds East 646.95 feet to a .on"iei" monument; thence sou$r ot degrees 20 mlnutes00 seconds East 635.g9 feet to a concrete monument; thence South ggdegrees 13 minutes 00 seconds Fast720'34 feet to the East line of lhe west 1/2 of the souihw*"t ia ot saic seclion sr 
"nl"ih* 

potnt of Beginning;\ thence North 89 degrees 13 minutes 0o sJconos west 84.70 feet io the west right-of-way llne of NW 4th street:t 
ln:ng3 south 2 degiees 45 minutes eo segonos East along said righlof-way line 1023.90 feet to its Intersectionwith the North righl-of'way line of NW 4th Avenue; lhence Eot on bn extendion of eaid North right-of-way line ofNW 4th Avenue 6g'91 fedt to the East line of said w""t r7z 

"l 
t'i'ri'bou$rwest ila or saiJ dJction 31; thence Northalong sald East ilne 1028 feet, more or ress, to crose on tne point oineginning.

Less and Except:

For a point of reference, commence at the southwest corner of the North 1/2 of lhe North 1/2 of the southwest 114of the Southwest 1/4 of.section 31, Township f i Soutfr, Cing* ig'frsti thence run East along the South tine ofsald North 1/2 of the North 1/2 of'the soutlrwest iA ;i Soittrwerr 1i4 4g"03 reet to a 6und iron pipe on the\ Easterly rlght-oFway line of Northwest 7tn streei 
"no 

tn" poiniJie.ginning; u.'"n.;-""nt]nue East, atong said\ south llne and the'North right-onwiy ilne ot wortn*"ti+tn nu"nuuiso.o"ieet irr*n""'lronn 02 degrees 2sminutes 30 seconds west, plrailer wiitr saio easierrl,. i.igf;t_;f_w;v-rin, or ruorttrwiit ?ifr 
'strJ,rt, 

1s0.0 feet; thencewest parallelwith said North right'of'way tine or ruoritrv'iest am nvenue 150.0 feet-h ti,.-i.it"rlv right.of-way llneof Northwest 7th street; tnencisouttr ol i*gr*es 25 minutei go seconos east, aroig said-easterly rlght-oFwayline, 150 feet to close on the point of eeglnning.

Less and Except the-lands conveyed in Deed Book 61, Page417 and official Records Book 1012, page 709 ofthe Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Less and except any portion lying within the right of way of NW 4th Avenue, NW 7th street and NW 4th street,

-F*

lssued By ;iupdiiil titte tnsura( _--
nce Agency of Marion County, LLC

\
Authorized Signatory

oP'25s / ALTA 6-17'06 owne/s poricy schedure A and B (with Frorida Modifications) (WLTIC Edition 5t14t14)

19



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA 6-17.06 OWN ER'S POLICY Florida Modifi

SCHEDULE B
File #: 91814 poticy #: O1_ZS_FL16Z4-6981006

This policy does not insure against loss or damage, and the company will not pay costs, attorneys, fees, or expenses thatarise by reason of:

Exceptions:

1' Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse clalms or other ma{ers, if any, created, first appearing in the public records oraftaching subsequent to the effective date hereof but nrtiit". ine aire f'u ri;p;Jiil;red acquires for yalue ofrecord the estate or interest or mortgage thereon covered by this commitment.

2' Rights or claims of parties in possession not shown by the public Records.

3' Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Tifle that would bedisclosed by an accuratg a1d complete gurvlr of the'Land. rne term "encroaihmeni; iictuoes encroachments ofexisling improvemente located on'the Land'onto 
"aioining 

'tanO, 
ano .n.ror.f,r"nts on the Land of existinglmprovements localed on the adjoined land.

4' Easements or craims of easements not shown by the pubric Records.

5' Taxes or special assessments which are not shown as existing llens by the public records.

6' Taxes and assessments for the year 20'18 and subsequent years, which are not yet due and payable.

*The foilowing items, as risted above, are hereby dereted: 1,2, Aand 5

7 ' Any lien provided by chapter 159, Florida statutes, in favor of any city., town, village or port authority for unpaidservice charges for service by any water, sewer or gas system sripptfing ttre lnsuieo-rafia.

8' That certain Agreement as recorded in official Records Book 1006, page 357, of the public Records of LevyCoung, Florida.

9' Existing unrecorded leases and all right thereunder of the lessees and of any person claiming by, through or underlessees.

oP-25s / ALTA 6'17-06 owne/s poricy schedure A and B (wilh Frodda Modrficailons) {WLTIC Edition 5t14t14)

20



r: $27'00 Deerl Doc: $l'155.{10 Danny J. shipp,clerk of the circuit court Levy F,L Deputy clerk MKA

Warrauty Deed (Lhrtd Ltbirrrycomprny)

Thlr bdcntun, nrdc, Novcnbcr 6,20tt AJJ.
Brhvetn Prrtr Flacc Eclrlcr, LtC, whorc P0!t3t772 unda fu lawr of$a Suo of, Ormior

OItntcq,

f , Surtr !t:-
I tr. trro'lcn, FL

altu

oao uy u,xllfo*l*, ffir**" 
Gl8ntor, fot 6nd in conrldcfrtlor of {rc runr of ren rnd No/t00. Do[rr8 (ilO.fir ), to h in hrnd

tu,l*'id;;;#?il;ffi ffiil,.Hfl1,ili#.rjff :'ffj:tt,:xs,?sl,$,;,Ji,on*iJii;;;f;#;;
SccAtt chd Erhlbla ',A',

subjeg to raxcr for rhs curcnt ycur @venanrs, rasrricrrons rnd cr.ccmenls of tr@r4 rf rny.

Prccl t&nrlficatioD N0rnbctr at77r00000

And 0ro rsld Onnoidooi hcr*y hlly wlnsnt thc titlG to rald lrn4 rnd wlll dofond dro $no rgrlrut ilp tawlbl clalnrs of ellF.lotu wbomtoavcr.

In wltno'ls W[er:of, tho rdd oronot hr'r cruscd hls lDstrumcnt to bc rxccrrt3d tn its nlnF by its dub luhorlrcd of,lc.rand caurcd lts corpona rcrl to be ri6,rcd difu .r,l n* iii.i"* ,"rfnoo,

pr.& phcr Erl.i.rr LLC

Slgned ond Sealed h Osr prcsencc:

Mrnrgcr

:

il*

Satl€ of
Corntyof {++ffi

(Coryontqt31D

NL

m#lr,nffi ,*f fl,tirTrg3,iffi ,#ffi *

My Commlsrion €xplr:r: :

t

I

R€cord3ld R!tum to:
Pr'lptmdby l',,atdarltsit to

_{ lrcp:TllgD of a ritto poticy byr
l, ulra r vqlgcn, m cmploycc of

. f S_uD.rlor Titls lnrurutco Agoncy of Marion County, LLC,\, rlzt South plnr AlEnuc
Ocrlr, FIorlrtE 3rl4?l
Flle Numbcr:9ttt4 # Iohry psulo en! otnort t

9uteom Kty 8ilnr
gy coantrrlir a€ i2etoq
E{F.lllt fl,llEotilr

llorl& CoryoEt! M/kfiq

21



Exhibit "A"

The North 1/2 of the North l/2 of Southwest l/4 of Southwest l/4 Excep the East 25 feetthereof; and the
Northwest l/4 of Southwest l/4 Except the East 25 feetthereof, all in Siction 31, Township 12 South, Range 19
East; Except the following describcd parcels:

Less and Except:

Commence at the Southwest comer of Lots 7 of J.J. Mixson Subdivision of the North l /2 of Seclion 3 l,
Township 12 South, \*g f 

g nas! thence run Soutb 350 feet, thence run East 840 feet, thence Northwesterly
along railroad right-of-way t 182 feet, lhence South 482 feet to the Point of Beginning, ull u, described in Deed
Book Z, Page 181,

Less and Except:

Commence at the West l/4 Section comel of Section 31, proceed thence South g7 degrees 14 minutes 35
seconds East a distance of 646.85 feet to the Point of Beginning continuing thence So-uth 87 degrees 14 minutes
35 seconds East a distance of 321feet; thence South p0 degr.J 47 minutes 59 seconds West a distance of
434.1 8 feet; thence South 87 degtees 32 minutes 35 secondb East a distance of395. l6 feet; thence South 00
degees 39 minutes 50 seconds West a distance of 203,85 &ot; thence North S? degrees 14minutes 35 sesonds
West a distance of 7 L5'20 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutes 50 seconds E"st u dist"nce of 636.00 feet to
the Point of Beginning

Less and Except:

Commence at the Northwest comer of ttre $outhwest l/4 of Section 31, Tqwnstlp 12 South, Range 19 East,

lherye south 89 degrees 12 minutes l0 seconds East 33 feet to a concrcte i,nonurqiint unJ 111* poinr of
Beginning; thence continue South 89 degrees 12 minutes l0 seconds East 613.g* feet to a concret€ rnonurnent;
thence South I degrees 20 minutes 00 seconds East 305 feet; thence North 89 degrees l0 minutes 3g seconds
West 608.15 feet to the East lBht1f-way line of Northwest Seventh Street; *ence North 2 degrees l5 minutes
30 seconds West along and with the said East right-of-way line of Northwest Seventh Street to the point of
Beginning.

Less ffid Except:

For a point of reference, commence at the Northwest corner of Southwest l/4 of Section 3 I thence South g9
degrees 12 minutes l0 seconds East 646,95 feet to a consrete monument; thence South 0l degrees 20 minutes
00 seconds East 635'89 feet to a conqete monument; thence South 89 degrees 13 minutes 00 seconds East
720.34 feet to the East line of the West l/2 of the Southwest l/4 of said Section 3l and the pointof Beginning;
thence North 89 degrees 13 minutes 00 seconds West 84.70 feet to the West right-of-way tine of NW +-tfiitt rU
thence South 2 degrees 45 minutes 20 seconds East along said right-of-way tini t OZf .q0 feet to its intersection
File Number: 91814
Lcgsl Dcsorlptaon - Exhibir A

22



with the North right-of-way line of NW 4th Avenue; thence East on an extension of said North right-of-way line
of NW 4th Avenue 66.91 feet to the East line of said West 1/2 of the Southwest l/4 of said Section 3l; thence
North along said East line 1023 feet, more or less, to close on the Point of Beginning.

Less and Except:

For a point of reference, oommence at the Southwest comer of the North 1/2 of the North 1/2 of the Southwcst
l/4 of the Southwest l/4 of Section 31, Township 12 South, Range 19 East; thence run Fastalong the South line
ofsaidNorth l/2oftheNorth ll2of thesouthwest l/4ofSouthwestll43S.03feettoafourdironpipeonthe
Easterly right-of-way line of Northwest 7th $treet and the Point of Beginning; thence eontinue Eas{ along said
South line and the Norttr right-of-way line of Northwest 4th Avenue 150.0 feet; thencs North 02 degrees 

-5
minutes 30 seconds West, parallel with said Easterly right-of-way line of Northwest 7th Stree! t50.0 feet;
thence West parallel with said North right-of-way line ofNorthwest 4th Avenue 150.0 feet to the Easterly
right'of-way line ofNorthwest 7th Street; thence South 02 degrees 25 minutes 30 seconds East, along said
Easterly right-of-way line, 150 feet to close on ttre point of Beginning.

Less and Except the lands convelFd in Deed Book 61, page 417 andofficial Records Book 1012, page 709 of
the Public Records of Lery County, flortda.

Less and exccpt any porfion lying within the ilght of way ofNW 4th Avenue, NW 7th Strcet and NW 4th Sheet.

File Number: 918i4
Lcgal Dcsorlprion - Exhlbil A

23



24



l)
3t
*4

lll Aa

t;
Y*

-- 545&

StE HAp ito.

\
CAITLE

co

455 4c

o

2
{

!f,tTgruRgY

6
c0-

tt8 &
i

@

rt
fo

o#o'.tt
OnlPfiIC SCALE

oz
q.

E
lrl
lr,
tt)

:g

J

\A
.*

?
p
o'?3
\

sa{6t'.mi
-,-elru
llr u

t1
a€

AF

e)
o
s
al

G
Fl}

on
ts"
e,

t0i!ttctou.
38

sDt
LIEI
€b

lrF 3l
tulrtt ,o"
rxrEa
Y.tHtO

aOL

IOYER
103 A.

E

&' j
fi{

6
TSTEruBT

SlEgxuRgt

c0
113 r

IHITEHOPST
cr?r[E CO.

lDltrt

!TITEf,URsl
dtll! 6

ao&

x!! at
?!q!!

st?8i0Fs
clnlE CO_

lGo lc

tqq
,
cfi
a!ui

CAfILE
?!&

c. t. !. R lcrt-
lEn

at t<
FO LS05

at !r

g--
qtat
t${r

!r$

tLFi€o a €0{t
sTof,ts, nr

Q]
mte

srf ER

Jl!
c oll

::T

lot'r H

?g nr

E6

--rq

o,

tt
C

F;

rlts
lts lc

lln!E
I ter.ks

co.
@ cottr-e
WH tfE HURST

d

5i3.5Ac

GR'NI LINE

S0rs

rl. J. 6 raaRY
urxsoN

zoel.

IM

SOG Ac,

!t{t?€fittRs?
clrrLE

co

25



I
I
:rrrmr

A - Agricultural

C-1 - Commercial General

C-2 - Commercial lntensive

CBD - Cenlral Business Dislrict

| - lndushial

P - Public

PD - Planned Development

QP - Quasi-Public

R-1 - Residential Single-Family

R-1 -A Residential Single-Family

R-2 - Residential Duplex

RB - Residential Business

RECIO - Recrealion/Open Space

RM-1-A- Residential Mobile Home

RM-2 - Residential Multifamily

RVP - Recrealional Vehicle pa*

Sl - Spray lrrigation

U - Unknown

$^tir"t

{*t4ft3$rr
ffir
ffi
[ffiir

0 0.25 0.5

CITY OF WITLISTON
FLORIDA

2O2O ZONING MAP

BBgLtlMEn. til. drp rndld dght dU t. td gbndg pu@Gr
ont rnd rbolbnol!.n.dto dabhtil h.prsch! btd6ot!n,
lcehr!, lho Cty at Wtrl$ p.odda r ng ffinly hr lh! tRUt.,q rY.IBblByollho d{.

DISCUIM€R: th. Lory Counly propsrtyAppraisois ofrco doos notbl.r..pondbiliy lor erors.od/or omdsstns rog.dhg tht3 mappiry

otscutMEa: Thlr disibld6la is Ior plenolng

lroclso otary
1 Miles

26



Date: February 161202l

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: RESOLUTION 2021-l2z A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE ASSIGNMENT OF A LEASE
WITH DENNIS MOELLMAN, TO REVOLUTION AVIATTON, INCORpORATED;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: AIRPORT MANAGER BENTON STEGALL
CITY ATTORNEY FRED KOBERLEIN

PREPARED BY:

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: ASSIGNING A LEASE FROM DENNIS
MOELLMAN TO REVOLUTTON AVIATION, INCORPORATED.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS:

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

27



CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2O2I.I2

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE ASSIGNMENT OF A
LEASE 1IIITH DENNIS MOELLMAN, TO REVOLUTION AVIATION,
INCORPORATED; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston, Florida (hereinafter the "City"), and

Dennis Moellman (hereinafter "Moellman"), entered into a lease agreement for

property located at the Williston Municipal Airport; and

WHEREAS, Moellman's lease with the City commenced on, or about,

November 14, 2072 and has subsequently been extended to August 3L, 2022;

and

WHEREAS, Moellman has requested of the City that the City consent to

an Assignment of Lease, a copy of which is attached hereto, wherein Moellman

assigns the lease obligations to Revolution Aviation, Incorporated, a Florida Profit

Corporation, located at 199 SW 1gth Ave., Williston, Florida 32696 (hereinafter

"Revolution"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that consenting to the Assignment from

Moellman to Revolution is in the best interests of the City and the Williston

Municipal Airport.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

crTY oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby

incorporated herein and made a part of this resolution.

Page 1 of2

28



Section 2. The City Council hereby approves the Assrgnment of Lease

from Moellman to Revolution and the City Council President is authorized to

execute the Consent of Lessor, a copy of which is attached hereto.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon

adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED a meeting of the Cit5r Council this _ day of

2027.

CITY OF IITELISTON, FLORIDA

By:
Justin Head, President

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

By By:
Latricia Wright, City Clerk Frederick L. Koberlein, Jr.,

City Attorney

Page 2 of 2

29



Return to:
City of Williston, Florida
Attn: City Clerk
50 NW Main Street
Williston, Florida 32696

ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE

WHEREAS, the undersigned DENNIS MOELLMAN ("ASSIGNOR"), in
consideration of the sum of
($ , in hand paid by REVOLUTION AVIATION, INCORPORATED,
a Florida for profit corporation ("ASSIGNEE"), the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, has granted, bargained, assigned transferred and set over
unto REVOLUTION AVIATION, INCORPORATED, that certain land lease
dated August 1,2012, wherein the CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA is the
LESSOR and DENNIS MOELLMAN, is the LESSEE; said land lease being
subsequently extended to July 31, 2022, which land lease covers the
premises located in Levy County, Florida and described more specifically
in the attached Land Lease Agreement, Existing Building, attached hereto
as composite "Exhibit A".

ASSIGNEE hereby accepts this assignment and agrees to assume all
obligations under the said lease and prior assignments and amendments.

fRemainder of page left blank intentionally.]

30



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this assignment
of land lease and such is effective on the date executed by the last signing
party.

ASSIGNOR:

By: By
WITNESS DENNIS MOELLMAN

PRINTED NAME

By:
WITNESS

PRINTED NAME

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LE\TT

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of _
physical presence or _ online notarization this day of

2O2L, Dennis Moellman, who is personally known to me
or produced as identification and did
not take an oath

Notary Public

31



ACCEPTANCE OF ASSIGNMENT

REVOLUTION AVIATION, INCORPORATED, a Florida for profit
corporation, by and through its undersigned agent, does hereby accept the
foregoing Assignment and by the execution hereof does hereby agree to be
bound by the terms and obligations set forth herein and the land lease
executed between Lessor and Lessee.

DATED this _ day of 202r.

REVOLUTION AVIATION,
INCORPORATID

By By:
WITNESS DENNIS E. MOELLMAN,

PRESIDENT
PRINTED NAME

By:
WITNESS

PRINTED NAME

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of _
physical presence or _online notarization this d"y of

2O2L, by Dennis E. Moellman, President, who is personally
known to me or produced
identification and did not take an oath

Notary Public

4C

32



CONSENT OF LESSOR

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, pursuant to Paragraph 18 of the
hereinabove referenced lease, does hereby consent to the foregoing
Assignment and by the execution hereof does herby agree to be bound by
the terms and obligations set forth therein.

DATED this _ day of ,2O2I.

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By:
WITNESS JUSTIN HEAD, PRESIDENT

PRINTED NAME

By:
WITNESS

ATTEST:
PRINTED NAME By:

LATRICIA WRIGHT,
CITY CLERK

By:

33



EXHIBIT A

LAND LEASE AGREEMENT
EXISTING BUILDING

LFSSOR:
City of Williston, Florida
Post Office Drawer 160

Williston, Florida 32696

LESSEE:
Dennis Moelhnan
1383 Norlh Carolina Avenue, N.E.
Waslrington,DC20A02

l.

WHBREAS, the CITY OIr WILLISTON, a Florida municipalcorporation, ("the Lessor"), maintains
an airport commonly ref'ered to as Williston Municipal Airporl; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the said City to promote and develop the said airporl; and

WHERBAS, I)ennis Moelhnan, ("the Lessee"), is desirous of leasing a cefiain parcel at the said
airport as is hereinafter described for the pulpose of aircraft storage;

NOW, THERBFORE, fbr and in consideration of good and valuable considerations and the
covenants, conditions and agreements as are hereinafter set fbrth, the Lessor and Lessee agree as follorvs:

I'RTIMISES: AS IS: The Lessor leases and Lessee does rent and hire finm the Lessor, the
followirrg described pt'emises located at 1902 SW 20 Terrace (#3) in Williston, [,evy County, Florida, (the
"Pretnises"), to-rvit:

A revetment and hardstand located at the North end of Taxiway "D" intersects rvith the centerline of Taxiway "E'.
at the Willistori Municipal Airport, described as follorvs:

Frorn the point where tlte centerline of the Taxirvay "D" intersects with the centerline of Taxiway "E", go Norlh
forty (40), then West fifty seven and one half (57 ll2) feet to the Point of Beginning; thence continue West two
hundred then (210) feet, then go South one hundred thirty (130) feet, then East fwo hundred (210) fbet, then North
one hundrcd thiry (130) feet to close on the Point of Beginning.

It is the responsibility of the Lessee, at the Lessee's sole expense, to satisS itself, prior to the execution of
this Agreement, as to the title and condition of the Premises including, without limitation, title to the
Premises, matters of record in the Official Records, of Levy County, permitted land uses, zoning codes,
building regulations, height limitations, setbacks, applicable building codes, pennits, soil conditions, and
environmental conditions. Lessor makes no rvananties or representations to the Lessee, and the Lessee
agrees the Lessor has made no wananty or representation respecting the condition of the Premises, or
applicable zoning laws and regulations, or applicability of the uses contemplated by the Lessee, or
environmental conditions, or any matters which a cument sulvey would disclose, or the applicabitity of any
covenants or restrictions of public record, except as otherwise expressly provided herein, Lessee t'urther'
acknowledges it has had adequate opportunity to inspect the Premises hereunder prior to entering into this
Agreement or has made adequate provision herein. Accordingly, the taking of possession of the Premises by
the Lessee shall be cotrclusive evidence that the Premises were in good and satisfactory condition when
possession was taken by Lessee.

1

34



2 TERM: The initial term of this Lease shall be FIVE years commencing on August 1.2012, and ending
at midnight, July 31" 2017. Should the Lessee hold over beyond the initial temr or any renewal temr
without ftlrtlier extension of the term in accordance with the renewal terms of this lease, ihen the Lessee
shall become a month to month tenant in accordance with law and upon the terms ancl conditions of this
lease.

3 RENT: The rent for the first year of the initial tenn of this lease shall be $8.715.82. The r.ent shall be
paid monthly, in advauce, in the antount of $788.52 per month, together ouittt utt uppticable sales tax. The
t'ent for the initial attd any renewal and hold over terms shali be adjgsted rurh y.ur on the annual
anniversaty date of the lease by multiplying the rent for the prior year by the percentage increase or
decrease in the composite Consuner Price Index for the most reient prior twelve months, as published by
the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. The rent shall be delivered by U.S. maii,
addressed to City of Williston, Post Office Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696, or hand delivered to
City I-lall, 50 N'w' Main Street, Williston, Florida during regular business hours, and shall be considerecj
nai! gnon receipt by Lessor. All payments requirecl to be maOe by Lessee to l.essor pursuant to the Lease
shall be deemed additional rent.

4. NOTICES: All notices required by law and by this Lease to be given by one party to the other shall be
in writing, and the same rnay be served by certified mail, rctum receipt requested, to Lessor, City of
Williston at P.O. Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696-0160 and to Lessee. I)ennis Moellman at 1383

N or to such other address as Lessor or Lessee rnay by
writing to the other so designate. Notice to Lessee may also be served by personal delivery.

5.:TheLessorcovenan.tsthatLessorisseizecl
ofthedenrisedprenrisesandowneri"@thefullrighttomakethisLease,subjectto
all matters of record' and covenants that the iessee upon making paym-ents of the rents ancl tire keeping
of the other covenants herein contained therefor shall have quiet-anct'peaceful possession of the clemised
premises during the tem hereofl

6':TheI,esseeslrallusethePl.emisesonlyforthefollowing
puryose: storage and sale of agricultural chernicals and fertilizers. I'he Lessee shall not use or permit the
Premises ol any part o1'the Premises to be used for any unauthorized or unlawful pulpose! or for any
purpose other than as set forth above.

7 ' CQMPLIANCE wlTH LAWS: During the tenn of this Lease, the Lessee shall cornply with all
ordinances, statutes, Iaws, rules and regulations of the City of Williston, State of Florida and the U.S.
Govemment, brcach of which shall be cause for cancellation of this Lease. The Lessee shall abide by all
applicable regulatiotis as set forth in Chapter 12 of the City Code of ordinances, together wit6 any future
amendments to said ordinance. The Lessee shall at all times maintain all required Iicensing and pernits.
The violation of any provision of the said ordinance, as evidenced by a final determination by the City,s
code enforcement board or a coutl of law, shall be conclusively delmed a delault under tliis lease and
shall not be subject to the notice requirements or cure provisioirs set forlh in t5e default section of this

2

35



lease. The Lessee further covenants that the said premises shall not be used for any plrrpose which might
cause forfeiture of the Lessor's title to the said premises.

8. SIGNS: Except with the prior written approval of Lessor, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld, Lessee shall not erect, maintain or display any signs or any advertising at or on the exterior of
the dernised premises or within the demised premises that are visible from outside such premises.

9, LESSORS RIGHT OF ENTRY: The Lessee at all times shall pennit Lessor or its agents to enter into
and upon the premises and buildings for the purpose of inspecting the same.

10. PREMISES IMPROVEMENTS UPON TERMINATION: l,essee may, at its own expense and only
upon written approval by Lessor, make alterations and improvements to the Premises as necessary for the

conduct of its business. Lessee specifically agrees that any and all improvements, except signs,

equipment and trade fixtures installed, located upon the said premises shall become the property of the

Lessor upon termination of this lease.

I 1, RIGHT OF WAY USE: Subject to reasonable regulations imposed regarding airport access, Lessor
grants to Lessee, its ernployees, agents, suppliers, customers and invitees, a non-exclusive right during
the term of this Lease, the right of way for ingress and egress, over, across and upon the designated right
of way to U.S. Highway4l / State Road 121.

12. OTHER RIGHTS RESERVED BY LESSOR: In addition to all rights resewed by Lessor in and to
the demised premises, Lessor expressly reserves the right to fuither develop or improve any area of the
airport and its industrial parks, as the Lessor deems proper, regardless of the desires and views of the
Lessee and without interference or hindrance; maintain and keep in repair, but without obligation to
Lessee, the airport and industrial parks of the airport and all publicly owned facilities of the airport; and
take any action it considers necessary to protect the aerial approaches of the airport against obstructions,
together with the right to prevent the Lessee fiom conducting any practice that may be detrimental to the
airport and industrial parks which in the opinion of the Lessor would limit the usefilness of the airport
and its industrial parks or constitute ahazardto such.

13. UTILITIES: The Lessee agrees to pay all charges for any and all utilities in or about the prernises
whether the same be telephone, electricity, water, sewer, gas or the like. Lessee fuither agrees that i{ at
any time during the term of this lease agreement, the City commences providing City utility services to
the airport propefty, the Lessee will purchase such utility sewices frorn the City. Lessee fu*her agrces to
take delivery of all City of Williston utilities when each utility service is made available. At the option of
Lessee and upon Lessor's concunence, Lessee may choose to have the Lessor provide all City utility
services to the leased premises as a part of the rent payment pursuant to paragraph 3 hereof. If Lessee
chooses this option, Lessor shall adjust each month's rent to Lessee so as to reimburse Lessor for its cost
of providing such City utility selices, said cost to be determined as established by the City's appropriate
utility tariffs based on Lessee's monthly metered consumption.

3

36



14. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCET Lessee aglees to make, at its own cost and expense, any or all
repairs or work necessary to maintain the Premises and Buildings located on the Premises.

I5. INSURANCE:
(a) Lessee agrees that any insurance coverage for properly owned by Lessee is solely the responsibility

ofLessee.
(b) The Lessee shall caruy Commercial General Liability insurance with a combined single limit in the

minimum amount of $1,000,000 in order to secrue the obligations of Lessee under the following
paragraph and cause the l,essol to be added as parly insured under such policy, and to furnish the

Lessor with a certificate of such insurzurce, together with a receipt showing the premiurn has been

paid.
(c) At any tirne after occupancy of the premises by the Lessee, the Lessee agrees to allow an inspection

by the Landlord and/or the Florida Department of Hnvirorunental Protection, (the "DEP"), to

determine the extent of storage or use of hazardous materials and to determine an appropriate atnount
of pollution insurance. The Lessee agrees to obtain pollution insurance, with the Lessor listed as a:r

additional insured party, in an amount as reasonably required by the Lessor within 15 days of written
notice.

(d) Allpolicies of insurance shall contain the clause that the same shall not be canceled except and until
fifteen (15) days after i.vritten notice to the Lessor.

16. INDEMNIFICATION OF LESSOR: Lessee agrees to plotect, defend, reimburse, indemnifr and hold
the Lessor, its agents, employees and officers and each of thern forever, free and harmless at all times
from and against any and all claims, liability, expenses, losses, costs, fines and damages (including
reasonable attorney fees) and causes of action of every kind and character (this is to the extent allowed by
law, and except to the extent caused by the Lessor's gross negligence or intentional rnisconduct) by
reason of any damage to property, or the envirorunent (including, r,vithout limitation, any contamination
of Airport properfy, such as the soil or storm water, or by fuel, gas, chemicals or any Hazardous
Substances), or bodily injury (irrcluding death) incuned or sustained by any party hereto, any agent or
employee of any party hereto, or any other person whomsoever, or any govenxnental agency, arising out
of or incident to or in connection with the Lessee's performance under this Agreement, the Lessee's use
or occupancy of the Premises, the Lessee's acts, omissions or operations hereunder or the performance,
non-perfonnance or purported performance of this Agreement or any breach of the terms of this
Agteement. Lessee recognizes the broad nahrre of this indemnification and hold harmless clause, and
voluntarily makes this covenant and expressly acknowledges the receipt of such good and valuable
consideration provided by the Lessor in support of this indemnification in accordance with the laws of the
State of Florida. This clause shall survive the termination of this Agreement. Compliance with the
insurance requirements herein shall not relieve the Lessee of its liability or obligation to indernnify the
Lessor as set forth in this Article. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing or within
this Agreement, the Lessor shall not relinquish or waive any of its rights as a sovereign local govemment
and the Lessor leserves all rights and defenses under applicable sovereign immunity law.

17' SUBORDINATION: This lease and all rights of Lessee under it are and shall be subject to and
subordinate to the rights of any nodgage holder now ol' hereafter having a security interest in the leased
prernises or any other encumbrances Lessor desires to place on the property.

4

37



IS.TAXES: All taxes, assessments and charges on lands or improvements and obligations upon the

demised premises shall be promptly paid by the Lessee when due. The Lessee shall have the right fi'om
time to time to contest or protest or review by legal proceedings any such other maruter as may be

provided by law such taxes or assesslnents imposed by govemmental authorities and to institute such
proceedings in the name of itself as well as the Lessor as it may deem necessary; provided, however, that
any experxe incuned by reasons thereof shall be borne by the Lessee and such proceedings shall be

conductecl free ofany expense to the Lessor.

19. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLBTTING: The Lessee shall not assign nor sublet its right, title or interest

in or to all or any porlion of the Premises or the leasehold improvements without first obtaining the prior
wlitten consent of the Lessor, provided, however, that such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld;
and provided further that the Lessee shall remain directly and primarily liable for the perfomtance of the

terms and conditions of this l.ease; provided further that no such assigmnent or subletting shall be made
to any person for any pulpose other than that set forlh in this Lease.

20. DEFAULT: REMEDIES: The occumence of anyone or more of the follorving events shall constitute a
default on the parl of the Lessee: (1) the Lessee fails to pay when due any rental or any other sum of
money payable hereunder on the date due; (2) the conduct of any business or performance of any acts at
the Airport not specifically authorizedin the Agreemenq (3) the Lessee abandons, desefts or vacates the
Premises; (4) the Lessee breaches or fails to comply with any other tenn, provision, covenarlt or
condition of this Agreement; or (5) the Lessee breaches or fails to cornply with any other term, provision,
covenant or condition of any other agreement, conhact or obligation with or to Lessor. Any or all of the
foregoing shall hereinafler be referred to as "Events of Default".

Upon the occurrence of any of the above Events of Default, the Lessor shall give written notice of such
default to Lessee at the address set forth under section 4, above. The effective date of notice shall be the
date that the notice is placed in the U.S. Mail or posted on the premises by Lessor. If the default is for
failure to pay rent or any other sum of money rvhen due, then the Lessee shall have thlee (3) days after
the effective date of notice to ctue. If the default is for any other Event of Default then the Lessee shall
have fifteen (15) days after the effective date olnotice to cure, except that Lessee shall not be allowed an
opportunity to cw'e a re-occurring Event of Default of the same type which has been previously notice by
the Lessor and cured by the I-essee.

If the Lessee fails to cure the default within the time allowed, l,essor shall thereafter have the option to
exercise any remedy or right permitted by law or in equity. l'he Lessee shall fully reimburse and
compensate the Lessor upon demand tbr any costs and expenses incurred in connection with alty cure,
conection or repair undertaken by Lessor, which sums shall be deerned to be additional rent hereunder.
In the event the l-essor relets the Plemises, the Lessee shall pay the Lessor any deficiency between the
amount received, if any, form such reletting, and the amount of rent and other fees payable by the Lessee
hereunder, including Lessor's expenses in comection with re-entry, taking possession, repairing and
reletting.

5

38



Notwithstanding the occurrence of any Event of Defuult, the Lessee shall remain liable to the Lessor for
all payrnents payable hereunder and for all preceding breaches of any covenant of this Agreement.
Furlhemrore, unless the Lessor elects to cancel this Ageement, the Lessee shall remain liable for and
promptly pay any and all payments accruing hereunder until such tirne as this Agreement has been duly
canceled. No retaking of possession of the Prernises y the Lessor shall be construed as an election on its
part to tenninate this Agreement, unless a wlitten notice of such intention be given to the Lessee. No
pursuit of any remedy by Lessor shall constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any payments or other moneys
due to the Lessor hereunder, or of any darnages accruing to the Lessor by reason of the violations of any
of the tems, provisions, and covenants herein contained. Lessor's acceptance of payrnents or other
moneys follolving any event of default hereunder shall not be construed as the Lessor's waiver of such
event of default wrless the event of default is the delinquency in the payment of the amount accepted. No
forbearance by the Lessor of action upon any violation or brcach of any of the terms, provision and
covenants herein contained shall be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of the tems, provisions
and covenants herein contained. Forbearance by the l,essor to enfbrce one or more of the remedies
herein provided upon an Event of Default shall not be deerned or construed to constitute a waiver of any
such remedy.

21. CONDEMNATION: in the event the entire premises hereby leased are taken in condemnation
proceedings, the Lessee rnay cancel the Lease; should a substantial part of said premises be so taken, the
Lessee may cancel this Lease or at its option retain the remainder of the premises, r,vhich shall be restored
to tenantable condition, then the rental shall be apportioned; the rental thereafter shall be reduced in
proporlion to the amount of loss as a result of condemnation proceedings.

22. CLEANLINESS: Lessee shall at all times keep the leased premises in a rcasonably neat and orderly
condition and clean and free from rubbish and dirl. Lessee will not store any unsightly materials, junk,
garbage or debris of any kind upon the said premises and shall commit or suffer no waste of the said
demised premises or maintain any nuisance thereon.

23. DBSTRUCTION OF PREMISES: In the event of dzunage to ol destruction of any improvements
which are to be erected on said real properly pursuant to the tenns of this Lease, during the term of said
Lease, fi'om any cause covered by the insumnce required hereunder, Lessee shall forthwith repair or
rehabilitate the same. Such damage or destruction shall in no wise annul or void this Lease.

24. LATE PAYMENT PENALTY: All lease payments that are not paid by the due date arc considered
delinquent and shall be assessed a ten (10) percent penalty which shall be considered a part of the rent
and shall be due and payable with the rent payment.

25. OPTION TO EXTEND TERM OF LEASE: Conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all
tetms and provisions of this lease during the entire tenn of the lease, Lessor does hereby grant to Lessee
an option to exteud the lease tenn for FOUR additional FIVE yeal terms, on like terms and conditions,
with the rent adjusted according to paragraph 3, and provided that the Lessee, at the least 90 days prior to
the end of the then cunent term, gives written notice of its intent to exercise its option. Lessee's right to
renew shall be conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all terms and provisions of this lease
during the entire tenn of the lease, and any non-compliance with any temr or provision of this lease by

6

39



Lessee, regardless of whether notice was given by Lessor or whether the non-compliance was cured, shall
constitute sufficient cause by Lessor to choose to refuse renewal of this lease.]

26. BANKRUPTCY: The Lessee agrees that if Lessee is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent under the laws of
the United States or arly state, or makes a general assigrunent for the benefit of creditors, or il a receiver
of the property of the Lessee is appointed and shall not be discharged within ninety days after such
appointment, then the Lessor may, at its option, declare the termination of this Lease agreement shall
forthr.vith be entitled to immediate possession of the Premises.

27. END OF TENANCY: The Lessee r,vill yield up the Premises and all additions thereto (except signs,
equipment and trade fixtures installed) in as good and tenantable condition as the same are at the
beginning of Lessee's occupancy, reasonable wear and tear, damage by fire and other casualties and
condemnation appropriate by eminent dornain excepted.

28. PART OF MUNICIPAL AIRPORT: It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto
that the said property is a portion of the Williston Municipal Airport and, therefore, notwithstanding
anything contaitted that may be or appear to the contrary, it is expressly understood and agreed that the
rights granted urder this agreement are non-exclusive and the Lessor herein reserves the right to grant
similar privileges to another Lessee or other Lessees on other parts of the airport. This Lease and all
provisions hereof are subject and subordinate to the terms and conditions of the instruments and
documents urder which the Lessor acquired the subject property fi'orn the United States of America and
shall be given only such effect as will not conflict or be inconsistent with the terms and conditions
contained in the deed of said lands to the Lessor, and any existing or subsequent amendments thereto, and
are subject to any ordinances, rules or regulations which have been, or may hereafter be adopted by the
United States of America, the State of Florida, or the Lessor pertaining to the Williston Airporl. These
terms and conditions include, but are not limited to. requirements that the Lessor obtain Fair market value
rent for the leased premises for the duration of the lease temr.

29, NONDISCRIMINATION: The Lessee foL itselt its personal representatives, successors in interest, and
assigns, as a part ofthe consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that (l) no person on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded fi'om participation in, denied the benefits of, or
be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) and that in the construction of any
improvements on, over or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the
grounds of race, color, or national original shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of,
or be otherwise subjected to discrirnination, (3) that the Lessee shall use the premises in compliance with
all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, department of
transpofiation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secrctary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted
programs of the Department of Transporlation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
and as said Regulations may be amended. In the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination
covenants, Lessor shall have the right to terminate the Lease and to re-enter and as if said Lease had
never been made or issued. The provision shall not be effective until the procedures of Title 49, Code of
Federal Regulations Part2l are followed and completed including exercise or expiration of appeal rights.

7

40



30. AIRPORT PROTBCTION: Lessor reserves unto itself, its successors and assigns, for the use and

benefit of the public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface of the

real property hereinafter described, together with the right to cause in said airspace such noise as may be

inherent in the operation of aircraft, now known or hercafter used, for navigation of or flight in the said

airspace, and for use of said airspace for landing on, taking off fi'om or operating on the airport. The
Lessee expressly agrees to restrict the height of structures, objects of natural growth and other
obstructions on the hercinafter described real property to such a height so as to comply with Federal
Aviation Regulations, Paft 77. 'fhe Lessee expressly agrees to prevent any use of the Premises wliieh
would interfere with or adversely aftbct the operation or maintenance of the aitporl, or othelwise
constitute an airport hazard.

3l. SUBROGATION CLAUSE: The Lessor and Lessee shall waive all rights, each against the other, and
against those holding under or through the Lessor or Lessee, fbr damages caused by fire or other perils to
the extent covered by insruance where such damages are sustained in connection r,vith the occupancy of
the Prernises.

32. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: The Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be
brought upon, stored, used, generated, released into the environment or disposed ofon, in, under or about
the airporl, without the prior written consent of the Lessor. To the fullest extent pennitted by law, Lessee

hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless Lessor and Lessor's Agents, and their
tespective successors and assigns, fi'om any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs,
liabilities and losses (including, without limitation, loss or restriction on use of rentable space or of any
amenity of the Premises and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, consultant t'ees and expert
fees) which arise during or after the lease temr directly or indirectly from the prcsence of Hazardous
Materials on, in or about the Premises which is caused or permitted by Lessee or Lessee's Agents. This
indernnification includes, without lirnitation, any and all costs incuned in connection with any
investigation of site conditions or any clean up remedial, removal or restomtion work required by any
federal, state or local governmental agency or political subdivision because of the presence of such
Hazardous Material in, on or about the Premises or the soil or ground water on or under any building or
any portion thereof. The Lessee shall promptly notify the Lessor of any release of Hazardous Materials
at tlie airporl, whether carsed by the Lessee or any other persons or entities.

The Lessee shall prornptly notify the Lessor of; and shall promptly provide true, corect, complete and
legible copies of, all of the following environmental items relating to any property at the airporl which
may be filed or prepared by or on behalf of, or delivered to or sewed upon, the Lessee: repr:r1s filed
pursuant to any self-reporting requirements, reports filed pursuant to any applicable laws, all pemrit
applications, petmits, monitoring reports, workplace exposur€ and conrmunity exposure wamings or
notices and all other repofis, disclosurcs, plans, manifests or documents (even those which rnay be
characterized as confidential) relating to water discharges, air pollution, water generation or disposal,
underground storage tanks or Hazardous Materials.

The Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to inspect, investigate, sample ancVor monitor any
property at the airport, including any soil, water, groundwater or other sampling, and any other testing,
digging, drilling or analyses, at any time, to determine whether the Lessee is complying with the

B

41



requirements of this section, or of any other law, and in connection therewith, the l,essee shall provide the
Lessor with full access to all relevant facilities, records and personnel.

As used in this section, the tenn "l{azardous Materials" shall rnean and include any hazardous or toxic
nlaterials, substances or wastes including (A) any materials, substances or wastes which are toxic,
ignitable, cotrosive or reactive and which are rcgulatecl by any local govemmental authority, any agency
of the State of Florida or any agency of the United States Government, (B) asbestos, (C) petroleurn and
petroleum-based products, (D) urea formaldehyde foam insulation, (E) polychlorinated byphenyls
("PCBs"), and (F) fi'eon and other chlorofluorocarbons.

Prior to the execution of this Lease, Lessee shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessor a Flazardous
Materials Questionnaire in the form required by Lessor. fhe cornpleted Hazardous Materials
Questionnaire shall be deemed incorporated into this Lease for all purposes, and Lessor shall be entitled
to rely fully on the information contained therein. On each anniversary of the commencement date of this
lease, Lessee shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessol an updated Hazardous Materials
Questionnaire, in tbrm as rnay be modified by Lessor from time to time.

If the l,essee or any environmental inspection discloses the existence of Hazardous Materials in, on,
under or about the Premises, the Lessee shall, at Lessor's request, irrunediately prepare and submit to
Lessor within thirly (30) days after such request a comprehensive plan, subject to Lessor's approval,
specilying the actions to be taken by Lessee to rcturn the Premises to the condition existing prior to the
introduction of such Hazardous Materials. Upon Lessor's approval of such clean-up plan, I-essee shall, at
Lessee's sole cost and expense, without lirnitation on any rights and remedies of Lessor under this lease,
or applicable law, immediately implement such plan and proceed to clean up the Hazardous Materials
in accordance with all applicable laws and as required by such plan and this lease.

Tlie provisions of this section, including, without lirnitation, the indemnification provisions set fbrth
herein, shall survive ary tennination of this lease.

33. STORMWATER POLLUTION: Lessee agrees to prepare and adhere to a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan that meets the requirements of federal and state law and that is approved by Lessor.
Lessee agrees to provide a copy ofsaid plan to Lessor.

34. LITIGATION VBNUE: l'he Lessor and Lessee waive the privilege of venue and agree that all litigation
between them in the State Courts shall take place in Levy County, Florida, and that all litigation between
them in the Federal Courts shall take place in the United States Distriot Court for the Northern District of
Florida.

35. BENBFIT: This lease and all of the covenants and provisions thereof shall inure to the benetit of and be
binding upon the legal representative successors and assigns of the parlies hereto.

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: T'his lease represents the complete understanding between the Padies, and
any prior agreements or representations, whether written or verbal, are hereby superseded. No agreement
to modify this lease will be effective unless in wliting and executed by the party against whom the

9

42



modification is sought to be enforced. Any such modification on the part of the l-essor shall not be
effective unless considered at a public meeting and approved by majority vote of the Williston City
Council.

37. SECURITY DEPOSIT: Lessor acknowledges receipt of $0 as a security deposit for faithful
performance by Lessee of Lessee's obligations under this lease. If Lessee faithfully performs the lease

obligations and timely surrenders possession of the premises, Lessor will repay the security deposit,
without intercst, within 30 days after expiration of the term. If Lessee vacates or is removed from the
premises because of Lessee's default before expiration of the term, Lessor may apply the security deposit
to all damages sustained. Any deposit balance that remains on the expiration date of the term will be paid
to Lessee within 30 days.

38. MEMORANDUM OF LA|ID LEASE AGREEMENT: The parties hereto agree to execute a

memorandum of this Land Lease Agreement to be recorded with the Clerk of Courts of Levy County,
Florida on or before sixty (60) days after the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in duplicate this
f{ day of rqa;txnsa& 201 L.

LESSEE
t\g,*rrcrs N^rrr r A^Ai*t

Dennis Moellman

LESSEE:

BY:

Prepared by and retum to:
City Attorney
City of Williston
PO Drawer 160

Williston, FL32696

Y

LESSOR:
CITY OF WILLISTON

BY: u
PRESIDENT, CITY COI"JNCIL

Jason S. Cason

NCES TAYLOR
CITY CLERK

L0

43



Prepared bY and tscurn to:
City Att,orney
CiLy of Williston

DEPUT'I CLEIIK MB
32696

MEMORANDUM OF LAND LEASE

THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASB entered into this /
by and between the City of Williston, Florida, (the "Lessor").'and

WITNESSETH:

' runrent $ 574104
r,* BK 1284 Pages 9?2-2rg(s)
RECOI{{JEO OZl2Et2$13 at 1O.2S ,ilt';l
Oanny ..l. Shipp, Lev'y Ccunty Clr:rk, :lr:r;*.'

201.2,

-:-

P.0. Drawer 160
Williston' FL

of
(the "Lessee").

,WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee have entered into a Land l,ease Agreement dated

A/alrAy*afl,2Al2, (the "Lease"), pursuant to which the Lessor leases to the Lessee that certain real
property herein described; and

WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee desire to record certairl basic terms of the Lease in the public
records of Levy County. Florida;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties do hereby confirm and set torth the following
terms of the Lease, it being acknowledged by the parties that the Lease contains additional temrs not set forth
below and that the enforceability of such additional terms shall not be affected by their omission from this
Memorandum of Land Lease:

1. The Lessor has leased to the Lessee pursuant to the l,ease the real property described with all
rights. privileges and easements appufienant thereto 1902 SW 20 Tenace (#3), in Williston, the Northeast %

of Section 14, Township 13 South, Range 18 East, Levy County, Florida: (collectively, the "Premises"), to
wit:

A revetment and hardstand located at the Norlh end of Taxiway "D" intersects with the centerline ol'
Taxiway ooE", at the Williston Municipal Airport, described as follows:

From the point r.vhere the centerline of the Taxiway "D" intersects with the centerline of Taxiway "E", Bo
North forty (40), then West fifty seven and one half (57 ll2) feet to the Point of Beginning; thence
continue West two hundred then (210) feet, then go South one hundred thirty (130) feet, then East trryo
hundred (210) fbet, then North one hundred thirty (130) feet to close on the Point of Beginning,

2. Unless sooner terminated as provided in the Lease, the initial tenn of the Lease is for five
years, beginning on August 1. 2012 and ending on July 31,2017. The Lessee has an option pursuant to the
Lease to renew the Lease for FOUR additional FIVE year terms.

3. The Lease allows the Lessee to construct or place leasehold improvements upon the premises,
however the Lessor's underlying fee interest shall not be subject to any construction lien related to such
improvements.

WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Land Lease this
zot;)-.

11

4 aay ar

44



LESSEE:
bau r+,s MoLLLAARI

LESSOR:
CITY OF TON

BY

;
PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL
Jason S. Cason

A

CLERK
Franees V. Taylor

before me this ofu day ot " 
t ,r/

is personally known to me and did not an oathrl

BY

Dennis Moe

LESSEE:

BY

STATE OF FLORIDA
COTINTY OF LEVY

The

The was 20r2--uv
Francesof the City Council of the City of Williston, and

Taylor, the City Clerk, on behalf City. They are personally known to me and did not take an oath.

V

STATE OF FLORIDA
COT]NTY OF LEVY

t-

.tf

acknowledged before me this / auy ot t_fu-u;',
F:I

insfrument
1r !

{i4 f

4'.

Public Verda Greaner

2014EXPIfiES:
8dd€d

r VERDAOFENEF
MY CoMMlssloN { EE 027580

TIEPAOREAIER
MY CotIMtSSloN I EE 04/588

EXPIRES: Soptombot m, n14
Bo.d€d flnj ilfiy futlh Und€fi!,tltsn

t2

45



IEASSiIE&U EI(TENS[Q-'+ \

about:blank

SHEREAS, the City of Williston {"l,essor"}, and Dennis Moellman,
("Lessee"), on Augu.sl 1,2012 did enter into a lease agreement tthe 

*lnitial Lease")
for real property, commonly known as l{ardstand #3, orvrred by Lessor for a lease
term of llve (5) years; and

WIIEREA8, Iessee trow requests a lease term extension of fivc (51 .years
and acknowledges that the lnitial Lease provided for live (5) addifional fivc {5)
.year terms and this instant extension serves as Lhe ticconcl (2nl) ol the fivc (5)
rcnewal options, leaving three {3} addirional terrns of five {5} ye ars cach lor a total
of 15 (15) available years from the expiratinn of this instant cxten$ion available.

NoqI THEREFoRE, for good and valuable consideration, the reccipt of
whiclr is hereby acknowledged, the Lessor nnd thc l-esscr: agrce as follows:

I . The lease lerm is hereby extcndcd lbr fivr,: ycars, bt:ginnirrg August 1,
2017 through July 31,2Q22.

2. The rent for the {irstyear lease period of August 1,z}fi rhrough August
31,2022 shall be $8,715.82 payable monthly in rhc amounr of $788..52, in
advance, together wilh all applieable sales tax ancl insurarlce. Rcnt for each
additional year shall be adjusted as provided in paragraph three (3) of the Initial
l,ease-

3. Except. fior the provisions conlained herein, all original terms,
conc{itions, and covenanrs of the Initial l,ease shall remain in full force and effect.

I ol4 8/1412020,8:24 AIv46



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

February 2,2021

TOPIC: Approve Resolution 2021-13 authorizing the City Council President to sign the
Agreement with Valley Collection Service, LLC for the collection of all utility billing
accounts; Airport lease and rental billing accounts; and all other City accounts
receivable invoices that are 90+ days delinquent.

PREPARED BY: |ackie Gorman, City Manager

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

The City received three Proposals from qualified Collection Services listed on the
attached sheet. Three (3) personnel from Inframark (Steven Bloom, Trumaine Easy &
Priscilla Lenzen) reviewed and ranked the proposals as well as Verdi Greaner, City of
Williston Utility Billing Specialist. All three ranked with VCS (Valley Collection Service,
LLC) having the highest score. Council awarded the contract to Valley Collection Service,
LLC on February 2,202'1..

Attached you will find the signed Agreement between the City of Williston and Valley
Collection Service, LLC for your review and approval. In addition, attached is
Resolution 2021.-13 authorizing the City Council President to sign the Agreement upon
approval.

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes

FISCAL IMPACTS: Yes, additional revenues received as a result of
using the collection service.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approval of the Contract with Valley Collection Service,
LLC and Approval of Resolution2}2l-l3

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution 2021-13; Contract with Valley Collection Service, LLC

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

47



RESOTUTTON 2021-13

A RESOTUTION OF THE CITY OF WttLtSTON, LEVY COUNTY, FLORTD& ACCEPnNG AN
AGREEMENT WITH VALTEY COIIECTTON SERV|CE, LLC AND AUTHORTZTNG THE CtTy
COUNCIL PRESTDENT TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston, after advertising for Qualifications and receiving three
responses, has awarded a Contract to Valley Collection Service, LLC, who would be involved in
the collection of 1) All utility billing accounts; 2) Airport lease and rental billing accounts; and,
3) All other City accounts receivable invoices that are 90+ days delinquent; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the City of Williston, Levy County, Florida, that:

SECTION 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true
and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Council President to execute said
Contract.

SECTION 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption

PASSED AND ADOPTED on 2021.

CIW OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

Justin Head, President
Williston City Council

ATTEST: Latricia Wright
City Clerk

48



VALLEY COLLECTION SERV'CE, I.I.C
17431 North 7l st Drive, Suile 104

GIENDALE, AZ 85308
PO BOX lOI30 GIENDALE, A285318

(623) 93r-4325 (623) 9344041 FAX

Conditions for accepting accounts from the Citv of Williston hereinafter referred to as
the "client" to Valley Collection Service, t-lC frereinafter referred to as the "agency".

Accounts will be accepted for collections for any amount as long as the most recent date
of prior payment or of service is within the statutory period. Adcounts may be accepted
through any medium, including computer disk, e-mail, computer printout, manually
prepared records or other computer technology.

The commission fee is 1F% for any accounts assigned to the agency regardless of the
amount of the account whether paid to VCS or the CLIENT. Thii amouni can be added
on to the amount assigned to the agency with the approvat of the client when the terms
of the collection fee added are included in City ordinance. A commission fee of 33% will
be charged for any accounts that the City requires to be assigned for legal action

The Agency shall implement through collection, procedures to achieve a maximum
recovery of debt. These procedures shall include telephone calls, mail efforts and skip
tracing procedures whenever necessary. lnformation concerning a delinquent debtor
may be released to a credit bureau or other third parties, if applicabl!, unless such release
would be contrary to the privacy rights of certain debtors as expressed in the federal and
state laws.

Legal action can be taken when all other collection efforts fail. Such action will be taken
on accounts over $5,000.00 onty. HOWEVER, SUCH ACTTON WILL BE TAKEN ONLY
UPON RECEIPT OF WRIfiEN AUTHORIZATION FROM THE CLIENT IN EACH
SPECIFIC INSTANCE.

ln the event of legal action being authorized, the Court costs (i.e.), the filing fee, and
service or process for the suit are advanced by the Agency and will be deducted from the
favorable judgment awarded by the Court. Attorney'Jfee will be paid by the Agency and,
if collected, will be retained by the Agency after the recoupment of the costi, principai
and Agency contingency fee.

However, should the Court rule in favor of the debtor because the creditor (client) failed
to appear at the hearing to prove a claim against the debtor, any legalfee incurred by the
Agency shall be paid by the client.

!n the event agency does not file suit within 120 days of suit authorization, the Client, at
its sole option, may recall the account from the Agency and Agency shall cease further
collection action on the account.

49



The Agency is an independent contractor under this agreement and shall be liable for its
own actions and th9:_u of its_employees in connection wittr this agreement. The Agency
agrees to hold the Qitv of Williston its officials and employees, h.-armless trom AgJncy's
negligence, errors or omissions or those of its employees, and agrees to defend and
indemnify the city of williston its otficials and emplbyees for the same.

The Agency will provide, each month, a computerized report showing the amount
collected on each debt during the previous montlr. A check toi tne amounidue the client
will be transmitted at that time.

The Agency will refer to the client any written appeal received from a debtor and will
withhold further Collection efforts on that account'until a written response is provided by
the client.

Accounts are assigned to the Agency for the duration of the statute of limitations period.
Accounts may be canceled after that period if the Agency is given 60 days notice in
writing, except when the account is being paid, in the process of-being paid, br has been
authorized for legal action.

Collection fee is only due to the agency after payment is made on an individual account.
The client is not responsible to pay any fees at aisignment. The only way that the agency
is due a payment is after an account holder haJmade a payment on tne Oelinluent
account to either the agency or the client.

All payments must be reported to Valley Collection Service, LLC prompily. Any bill sent
to client for commission due must be paid to the agency within 30 days'af[er reieipt.

Public Records: The Agency shail comply with all public records laws.

IF THE AGENCY HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE
AGENCY'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO
THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC
RECORDS AT:

City Clerk, City of Williston
50 NW Main Street
Williston, Florida 32690
(352) 528-3060

The Agency shall comply with public records laws, specifically the Agency shall:

Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the
services.

Upon request from the City's custodian of public records, provide the City w1h a
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within
a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in ffris Chapter
119 of Florida Statutes or as otherwise provided by law.

50



Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from publicrecords disclosure requirements are not discloild except as 
"rtnoiited 

by law forthe duration of the contract term and tottowinf completion of the contract if theAgency does not transfer the records to tne Citi,

Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the city all public recordsin possession of the Agency or keep ano'mainlain public r".oior ,"quired by thecity to perform the service. lt tne Ag"n./ trans-terd .lr puori" r"ioros to the c1yupon completion of the contract, tne ng'ency shall ceJtiov any Juplicate publicrecords that are- exempt or confidential aid eiempt trom pubtic iecorcs disclosurerequirements' lf the Agency keeps and maintains public records upon completionof the contract, the Agency shall meet arr appiicable requir"*"ni, for retainingpublic records' All records storeo electronicairy-must be provideJto tn" city, uponrequest from the city's custodian of public records, in a format irrat is compatiblewith the information technology systems of the City.

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE AND AGREE TO THE RATES AND CONDITIONS:

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

By:
Latricia Wright, City Clerk

VALLEY COLLECTION SERVICE, LLC

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By
Justin Head,
City Council President

z// zDZl

51



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
March 2,2021.

TOPIC: Review and possible action regarding offers received by Marc pompeo, Harriet
Downs Real Estate for City-owned 30-Acre Parcel #0g29400200 6ronson, FL

PREPARED BY: Jackie Gorman, City Manager

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

Council recently approved using Harriet Downs Real Estate to sell30 acres of city owned
property outside the city limits. Since that time Marc Pompeo received two (2) oifers for
consideration by Council identified as #1 and, #2in the ord., we received them. The
explanation for each offer is on the email from Marc Pompeo for each property.

LEGAL REVIEW: None

FISCAL IMPACTS: Included in offer

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
advertising the property.

Approve or authorize lvfu. pompeo to continue

ATTACHMENTS: None

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

52



_+

City Manager

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Attachments:
Subject:

Marc Pompeo <marc@hdownsrealestate.com>
Friday, February 19,2021 11:50 AM
City Manager
CJ Zimoski
Offer - 30 Acres outside City limits
Estimated Settlement Costs .pdf; Offer on 30 Acres.pdf; pOF.pdf

Hi Jackie,
I have attached an offer on the City's 30 acres in Bronson. I have included an Estimated Cost form showing the
breakdown of this offer.
The offer includes a 20 day Feasibility Study period allowing the buyer to do any inspections and due diligence for their
purchase.
The contract has an acceptance date of Monday. Let me know if the decision will take longer.
I've also included this buyer's Proof of Funds showing the purchase money is readily available.

If this will work, please have all pages initialed as indicated for Seller and sign as marked for Seller on page 7.

Please let me know if there are any questions or concems.
Thank you,
Marc

Marc Pompeo - Broker/Owner
Harriett Downs Real Estate LLC

www. H DownsRea I Estate.co m
147 N. Main Street, Williston, FL 32698

office: ,52-528-4400
cell: 352-538-5551
fax: 877-6O0-0291

City Manager wrote on 2h6/2O21 11:46 AM:

we have been using Levy Title for closing on other properties. Jackie

From: Marc Pompeo <marc@hdownsrealestate.com>
Sent: Saturday, February L3,2021" 3:24 pM

To: City Manager <citv.manager@willistonfl.org>
Subject: Closing Agent - 30 Acres outside City limits

Hello Jackie,
Please advise on who you would like to use as a closing agent for this sale.

Thank you,
Marc

Marc Pompeo - Broker/Owner
Harriett Downs Real Estate LLC

www. H DownsRealEstate.com
147 N. Main Street, Williston, FL 3269G

53



HARruETT DOWNS REAI ESTATE ttc
Licensed Real Estate Broker

l4Z North Main Street
Williston, Florida 32696

3 5 2.5 28.4400
Branch Office 352.S28.5St5

ESTIMATED SETTLEMENT COSTS

Seller: City of Williston Buyer:

Property Address: 30 Acres NE I I 5 Street, Bronson, FL 32621

NAJAH JIAZ

Closing Date: March 31,2021

$ l 15,000.00
TPURCHASE PRICE:

Binder deposit

Cash at closing
Ncw I st mortgag€ or mortgagc assumed
Purchase money mortgage or 2nd assumed

$ I,500.00
I I 3,500.00

TOTAL $ l 15,000.00

OSELLER'S COSTS:

Real Estate Sales Commission
Abstracting Costs or Owners Title Insurance policy
Documentary Stamps on Deed (.70 per $100)
Attomey's Fee (estimated)

Preparation of Deed and/or Satisfaction
Record Satisfaction
20_ Real Estate Taxes prorated to closing

aPossible costs by contract provisions
f".-it-treuttn*t unal- ."pair (up to 1.5% of salcs price)
Repairs or replacement (up to 1.5% ofsales price)

$ 5,7s0.00

I .185.00

805.00

nla

0.00

0.00

TOTAL $ 7,740.00

}BT'YER'S COSTS:

Owncrs Titlc Insurancc Policy/Attomcy's Opinion
Mortgagee's Title Insurance Policy
Intangible Tu on Mortgage (S.002)

Documcntary Stamps on Note ($.35 per $100.)
Appraisal Fee or Application Fee

Swey
Morlgagc Transfcr Fee on Assumption

Temite Inspection

Mobile Home Title Transfer (per side)

$

TOTAL $

.BUYER'S ESTIMATED MONTHLY PAYMENTS:
Principal and Interest

l/12 annual rcal cstatc tax

l/12 annual hazad insurance premium

l/l 2 mortgage insurance premium

$

TOTAL $

iSELLER'S ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS:
Purchase Price
Less: Existingmortgages

Scller's estimated closing costs

Buyer's costs (if applicable)

NET $ TO SELLER (lcss taxes prorated to closing) $ I 07,260.00

We acknowlcdgc that the above costs are estimates madc by thc agent and that thc final costs will bc dctermincd by thc closing agcnt.

I 15,000.00

0.00

7 740.00

Seller:

Seller:

Sedal#: 091333-500161-3?53128

Date:

Date:

rcv I 2- 16

Form
Simplicity

Prepared by: Marc Pompeo I Hadet DoMs Real Estate LLC I marc@hdNnsrealeslale.@m 
I Ii*
54



Vacant Land Contract '.$6u$F"

3

4

5.
6.
7

8

I
10

11-
12-
13

1. Sale and Purchase:
and

CITY OF WILLISTON ("Seller")
("Buyer")NAJAH JIAZ

(the "parties") agree to sell and buy on the terms and conditions specified below the property ("Property")
described as:

SEC _/TWP /_/RNG _ of Levy County, Florida. Real Property lD No. 03234-OO2-OO
including all improvements existing on the Property and the following additional property:

14"
15

16.
17.
18"
19-
20*

21

22.
23.
24*
25

26-
27-
28.
29.
30

31 *

38

39.
40
41

42

2. Purchase Price: (U.S.
Alldeposits will be mad
Escrow Agent's Name:

currency)
e payable to "Escrow Agent" named below and held in escrow by:

Levy Abstract & Title Co

$ 115,000.00

$

Escrow Agent's Contact Person Debi Bouchard
Escrow Agent's Address:
Escrow Agent's Phone: 352-486-2116
Escrow Agent's 56s;1'

(a) lnitial deposit ($0 if left blank) (Check if applicable)
fl accompanies offer
E will be delivered to Escrow Agent within days (3 days if left blank)
after Effective Date

(b) Additional deposit will be delivered to Escrow Agent (Check if applicable)
n within days (10 days if Ieft blank) after Effective Date
[J within days (3 days if left blank) afier expiration of Feasibility Study Period ......,

{c) Total Financing (see Paragraph 6) (express as a dollar amount or percentage) .................

$ 1,500.00

(d) Other:
(e) Balance to close (not including Buyer's closing costs, prepaid items, and prorations)

to be paid at closing by wire transfer or other Collected funds .......... 1 13,500.00

(fl n (Complete only if purchase price will be determined based on a per unit cost instead of a fixed price.) The
unit used to determine the purchase price is ! lot n acre n square foot ! other (specify):
prorating areas of less than a full unit. The purchase price willbe $ per unit based on a
calculation of total area of the Property as certified to Seller and Buyer by a Florida licensed surveyor in
accordance with Paragraph B(c). The following rights of way and other areas will be excluded from the
calculation:

3. Time for Acceptance; Effective Date: Unless this offer is signed by Seller and Buyer and an executed copy
delivered to all parties on or before February 22,2021 this offer will be withdrawn and Buyer's deposit, if
any, will be returned. The time for acceptance of any counter-offer will be 3 days after the date the counter-offer is
delivered. The "Effective Date" of this contract is the date on which the last one of the Seller and Buyer has
signed or initialed and delivered this offer or the final counter-offer.

4. Closing Date: This transaction will close sn or beforeMarch 31, 2021 ("Closing Date"), unless specifically
extended by other provisions of this contract. The Closing Date will prevail over all other time periods including, but
not limited to, Financing and Feasibility Study periods. However, if the Closing Date occurs on a Saturday,
Sunday, or national legalholiday, itwillextend to 5:00 p.m. (where the Property is located)of the next business
day. ln the event insurance underwriting is suspended on Closing Date and Buyer is unable to obtain property
insurance, Buyer may postpone closing for up to 5 days after the insurance underwriting suspension is lifted. lf
this transaction does not close for any reason, Buyer will immediately return all Seller provided documents and
other items.

5. Extension of Closing Date: lf Paragraph 6(b) is checked and Closing Funds from Buyer's lende(s) are not
available on Closing Date due to Consumer Financial Protection Bureau Closing Disclosure delivery requirements

AuV., A)(-) and Seller ( ) (-) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 1 of 8 pages.

$

32

33

34

35

36

37

43

44

45

46
47
48

49

50

51

52

VAC-13 Rev2/20
Serial#: 01 1 215.800J61-3690923

O2020 Florida Realtors@

Elecronically Signed using esignonlinelu I SessaonlD:0od27el-1583-427t87a2-593c19517334 ]

Form
Simplicity

55



53

54

qgfPB Requirements"), if applicable, then Closing Date shall be extended for such period necessary to satisfy
CFPB Requirements, provided such period shall not exceed 10 days.

Financing: (Check as applicable)
(a) tr Buyer will pay cash for the Property with no financing contingency.
(b) ! This contract is contingent on Buyer qualifying for and obtaining the commitment(s) or approval(s) specified

below ("Financing") within 

- 

days after Effective Date (Closing Date or 30 days after Effective Date,
whichever occurs first, if left blank) ("Financing Period"). Buyer will apply for Financing within _ days
after Effective Date (5 days if left blank) and will timely provide any and all credit, employment, financiat, and
other information required by the lender. lf Buyer, after using diligence and good faith, cannot obtain the
Financing within the Financing Period, either party may terminate this contract and Buyer's deposit(s) will be
returned.
(1) [J New Financing: Buyer will secure a commitment for new third party financin g for $

or % of the purchase price at (Check one) n a fixed rate not exceeding % nan
adjustable interest rate not exceeding _Yo at origination (a fixed rate at the prevailing interest rate
based on Buyer's creditworthiness if neither choice is selected). Buyer will keep Seller and Broker fully
informed of the loan application status and progress and authorizes the lender or mortgage broker to
disclose all such information to Seller and Broker.

(2) D Seller Financing: Buyer will execute a !

6.

Seller in the amount of
first n second purchase money note and mortgage to
bearing annual interest al _Yo and payable as follows:

55

56-
57.
58.
59.
60

61

oz

63
64-
65.
66-
67

68

69

70"
71*
72*

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82.
83.
84.
85.
86*
87.
88

89.
90-
91

92

The mortgage, note, and any security agreement will be in a form acceptable to Seller and will follow
forms generally accepted in the county where the Property is located; will provide for a late payment fee
and acceleration at the mortgagee's option if Buyer defaults; will give Buyer the right to prepay without
penalty all or part of the principal at any time(s) with interest only to date of payment; will be due on
conveyance or sale; will provide for release of contiguous parcels, if applicable; and will require Buyer to
keep liability insurance on the Property, with Seller as additional named insured. Buyer authorizes Seller
to obtain credit, employment, and other necessary information to determine creditworthiness for the
flnancing. Seller will, within 10 days after Effective Date, give Buyer written notice of whether or not Seller
will make the loan.

(3) n Mortgage Assumption: Buyer will take title subject to and assume and pay existing first mortgage to

LN#
$

in the approximate amount of $ currently payable at
per month, including principal, interest, n taxes and insurance, and having aI fixed other (describe)

interest rate of 

-% 

which n will nwill not escalate upon assumption. Any variance in tne mortgage
will be adjusted in the balance due at closing with no adjustment to purchase price. Buyer will purchase
Seller's escrow account dollar for dollar. lf the interest rate upon transfer exceeds _% or the
assumption/transfer fee exceeds $_, either party may elect to pay the excess, failing
which this contract will terminate; and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned. lf the lender disapproves Buyer,
this contract will terminate; and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned.

Assignability: (Check one) Buyer n may assign and thereby be released from any further liability under this
contract, I may assign but not be released from liability under this contract, or E may not assign this contract.

Title: Seller has the legal capacity to and will convey marketable title to the Property by E statutory warranty
free of liens, easements,deed n special warranty deed n other (specify)

93

94

7.

8.oA*

96*
97

98

99-
100

101

102
103

104.
'105 .

106

107 -

108

VAC-13 Rev2/20
Serial#r 01 l21 5-8001 61 -3690923

and encumbrances of record or known to Seller, but subject to
restrictions, and public utility easements of record; existing zon

property taxes for the year of closing; covenants,
ing and governmental regulations; and (list any

other matters to which title will be subject)
provided there exists at closing no violation of the foregoing
(a) Title Evidence: The party who pays for the owner's title insurance policy will select the closing agent and pay

for the title search, including tax and lien search (including municipal lien search) if performed, and all other
fees charged by closing agent. Seller will deliver to Buyer, at
(Gheck one) E Seller's ! Buyer's expense and
(Checkone) [within-daysafterEffectiveDate Eatleast 15 daysbeforeClosingDate,
(Check one)
(1) tr a title insurance commitment by a Florida licensed title insurer setting forth those matters to be

discharged by Seller at or before closing and, upon Buyer recording the deed, an owner's policy in the

,ur., tJJ l(-) and seller ( ) (-) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 2 of 8 pages.

@2020 Florida Realtors@

Electronically Sagned using esignonline'r I Session tD:0ed27et-1583-427f-87a2-SS3c19517334 |

t
Form
Simplicity

56



'109

110

111

112-
't 13

114

115

1'16

117

118
't 19.
120

121

122.
123

124

125

126

127

128

129
'130

131

132
133

134

135

136

137

138 *

139

140

141

142

143

144

145
146

147

148

149

150

151

152
153

154

155
'156

157

158

159

amount of the purchase price for fee simple title subject only to the exceptions stated above. lf Buyer is
paying for the owner's title insurance policy and Seller has an owner's policy, Seller will deliver a copy to
Buyer within 15 days after Effective Date.

(2) tr an abstract of title, prepared or brought current by an existing abstract firm or certified as correct by an
existing firm. However, if such an abstract is not available to Seller, then a prior owner's title policy
acceptable to the proposed insurer as a base for reissuance of coverage may be used. The prior policy will
include copies of all policy exceptions and an update in a format acceptable to Buyer from the policy
effective date and certified to Buyer or Buyer's closing agent together with copies of all documents
recited in the prior policy and in the update. lf such an abstract or prior policy is not available to Seller,
then (1) above will be the title evidence.

(b) Title Examination: After receipt of the title evidence, Buyer will, within days (10 days if left blank) but
no later than Closing Date, deliver written notice to Seller of title defects. Title will be deemed acceptable to
Buyer if (i) Buyer fails to deliver proper notice of defects or (ii) Buyer delivers proper written notice and Seller
cures the defects within _ days (30 days if left blank) ("Cure Period") after receipt of the notice. lf the
defects are cured within the Cure Period, closing will occur within 10 days after receipt by Buyer of notice of
such cure. Seller may elect not to cure defects if Seller reasonably believes any defect cannot be cured within
the Cure Period. lf the defects are not cured within the Cure Period, Buyer will have 'l 0 days after receipt of
notice of Seller's inability to cure the defects to elect whether to terminate this contract or accept title subject
to existing defects and close the transaction without reduction in purchase price.

(c) Survey: Buyer may, at Buyer's expense, have the Property surveyed and must deliver written notice to
Seller, within 5 days after receiving survey but not later than 5 days before Closing Date, of any
encroachments on the Property, encroachments by the Property's improvements on other lands, or deed
restriction or zoning violations. Any such encroachment or violation will be treated in the same manner as a
title defect and Seller's and Buyer's obligations will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 8(b).

(d) lngress and Egress: Seller warrants that the Propefi presently has ingress and egress.

9. Property Condition: Seller will deliver the Property to Buyer at closing in its present "as is" condition, with
conditions resulting from Buyer's lnspections and casualty damage, if any, excepted. Seller will not engage in or
permit any activity that would materially alter the Property's condition without the Buyer's prior written consent.
(a) lnspections: (Check (1) or (2))

(1) tr Feasibility Study: Buyer will, at Buyer's expense and within 20 days (30 days if left blank)
("Feasibility Study Period") after Effective Date and in Buyer's sole and absolute discretion, determine
whether the Property is suitable for Buyer's intended use. During the Feasibility Study Period, Buyer may
conduct a Phase 1 environmental assessment and any other tests, analyses, surveys, and investigations
("lnspections") that Buyer deems necessary to determine to Buyer's satisfaction the Property's
engineering, architectural, and environmental properties; zoning and zoning restrictions; subdivision
statutes; soil and grade; availability of access to public roads, water, and other utilities; consistency with
local, state, and regional growth management plans; availability of permits, government approvals, and
licenses; and other inspections that Buyer deems appropriate. lf the Property must be rezoned, Buyer will
obtain the rezoning from the appropriate government agencies. Seller will sign all documents Buyer is
required to file in connection with development or rezoning approvals. Seller gives Buyer, its agents,
contractors, and assigns, the right to enter the Property at any time during the Feasibility Study Period for
the purpose of conducting lnspections, provided, however, that Buyer, its agents, contractors, and assigns
enter the Property and conduct lnspections at their own risk. Buyer will indemnify and hold Seller
harmless from losses, damages, costs, claims, and expenses of any nature, including attorneys' fees,
expenses, and liability incurred in application for rezoning or related proceedings, and from liability to any
person, arising from the conduct of any and all lnspections or any work authorized by Buyer. Buyer will
not engage in any activity that could result in a construction lien being filed against the Property without
Seller's prior written consent. lf this transaction does not close, Buyer will, at Buyer's expense, (i) repair
all damages to the Property resulting from the lnspections and return the Property to the condition it was in
before conducting the lnspections and (ii) release to Seller all reports and other work generated as a
result of the lnspections.

Before expiration of the Feasibility Study Period, Buyer must deliver written notice to Seller of Buyer's
determination of whether or not the Property is acceptable. Buyer's failure to comply with this notice
requirement will constitute acceptance of the Property as suitable for Buyer's intended use in its "as is"
condition. lf the Property is unacceptable to Buyer and written notice of this fact is timely delivered to
Seller, this contract will be deemed terminated, and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned.

eulu A.)(-) and Seller ( ) (-) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 3 of 8 pages.

VAC-13 Rev2/20
Serial#: 0l l2'l 5-8001 61.3690923

@2020 Florida Realtors@

Form
Simplicity

'160

161

162
163

164

Electonically Signed using esignonlinerM { Session lD : 0ed27ef-f583-427f"87a2-593c19517334 I 57



165.
166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174

175
176

177

17A

179

180

181

182
183

184

185 "

186

187

188

189

190

191

192
'193

194

195

196

197 *

198

199

200

201

202
203

204

205
206

207"
208
209

210
211

212

213

214

21s
216"
217

218

219
220
221

(2) n No Feasibility Study: Buyer is satisfied that the Property is suitable for Buyer's purposes, including
being satisfied that either public sewerage and water are available to the Property or the Property will be
approved for the installation of a well and/or private sewerage disposal system and that existing zoning
and other pertinent regulations and restrictions, such as subdivision or deed restrictions, concurrency,
groMh management, and environmental conditions, are acceptable to Buyer. This contract is not
contingent on Buyer conducting any further investigations.

(b) Government Regulations: Changes in government regulations and levels of service which affect Buyer's
intended use of the Property will not be grounds for terminating this contract if the Feasibility Study Period has
expired or if Paragraph 9(a)(2) is selected.

(c) Flood Zone: Buyer is advised to verify by survey, with the lender, and with appropriate government agencies
which flood zone the Property is in, whether flood insurance is required, and what restrictions apply to
improving the Property and rebuilding in the event of casualty.

(d) Coastal Construction Control Line ("CCGL"): lf any part of the Property lies seaward of the CCCL as
defined in Section 161.053, Florida Statutes, Seller will provide Buyer with an affidavit or survey as required
by law delineating the line's location on the Property, unless Buyer waives this requirement in writing. The
Property being purchased may be subject to coastal erosion and to federal, state, or local regulations that
govern coaslal property, including delineation of the CCCL, rigid coastal protection structures, beach
nourishment, and the protection of marine turtles. Additional information can be obtained from the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection, including whether there are significant erosion conditions associated
with the shore line of the Property being purchased.
n Buyer waives the right to receive a CCCL affidavit or survey.

10. Closing Procedure; Gosts: Closing will take place in the county where the Property is located and may be
conducted by mail or electronic means. lf title insurance insures Buyer for title defects arising between the title
binder effective date and recording of Buyer's deed, closing agent will disburse at closing the net sale proeeeds to
Seller (in local cashier's check if Seller requests in writing at least 5 days before closing) and brokerage fees to
Broker as per Paragraph 21. ln addition to other expenses provided in this contract, Seller and Buyer will pay the
costs indicated below.
(a) Seller Costs:

Taxes on deed
Recording fees for documents needed to cure title
Title evidence (if applicable under Paragraph 8)
Estoppel Fee(s)
Other:

(b) Buyer Costs:
Taxes and recording fees on notes and mortgages
Recording fees on the deed and financing statements
Loan expenses
Title evidence (if applicable under Paragraph 8)
Lender's title policy at the simultaneous issue rate
lnspections
Survey
lnsurance
Other:

(c) Prorations: The following items will be made current and prorated as of the day before Closing Date: real
estate taxes (including special benefit tax liens imposed by a CDD), interest, bonds, assessments, leases, and
other Property expenses and revenues. lf taxes and assessments for the current year cannot be determined,
the previous year's rates will be used with adjustment for any exemptions.

(d) Special Assessment by Public Body: Regarding special assessments imposed by a public body, Seller will
pay (i) the full amount of liens that are certified, confirmed, and ratified before closing and (ii) the amount of the
last estimate of the assessment if an improvement is substantially completed as of Effective Date but has not
resulted in a lien before closing; and Buyer will pay all other amounts. lf special assessments may be paid in
installments, ! Seller I Buyer (Buyer if left blank)will pay installments due after closing. lf Seller is
checked, Seller will pay the assessment in full before or at the time of closing. Public body does not include a
Homeowners' or Condominium Association.

(e) PROPERTY TAX DISCLOSURE SUMMARY: BUYER SHOULD NOT RELY ON THE SELLER'S CURRENT
PROPERTY TAXES AS THE AMOUNT OF PROPERTY TAXES THAT BUYER MAY BE OBLIGATED TO
PAY IN THE YEAR SUBSEQUENT TO PURCHASE. A CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP OR PROPERTY

A, ,,-rand Seller t-) (-) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 4 of 8 pages.Buyer

vAc-13 Rev 2l2Q
Serial#: 0t 1215{001 61 -3690923

02020 Florida Realtorso

Form
Simplicity

Elecroni@lly Signed using esignonlinen I SessionlD:0ed27ef-15g3"427f-87a2-593c19517334 I

t

58



222

223

224

225
226
227

228
229
230
231

232

233
234
235
236
237

238
239

240

241

242

243
244

245

246
247

248
249
250
251

252
253

254

255

256
257

258
259
260

261

262

263
264

265
Zrll)

267

268

269

270
271

272

273

274

275

276

IMPROVEMENTS TRIGGERS REASSESSMENTS OF THE PROPERTY THAT COULD RESULT IN HIGHER
PROPERTY TAXES. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING VALUATION, CONTACT THE
COUNry PROPERry APPRAISER'S OFFICE FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

(f) Foreign lnvestment in Real Property Tax Act ("F|RPTA"): lf Seller is a "foreign person" as defined by
FIRPTA, Seller and Buyer will comply with FIRPTA, which may require Seller to provide additional cash at
closing.

(g) 1031 Exchange: lf either Seller or Buyer wish to enter into a like-kind exchange (either simultaneously with
closing or after) under Section 1031 of the lnternal Revenue Code ("Exchange"), the other party will cooperate
in all reasonable respects to effectuate the Exchange including executing documents, provided, however, that
the cooperating party will incur no liability or cost related to the Exchange and that the closing will not be
contingent upon, extended, or delayed by the Exchange.

11. Computation of Time: Calendar days will be used when computing time periods, except time periods of 5 days
or less. Time periods of 5 days or less will be computed without including Saturday, Sunday, or national legal
holidays specified in 5 U.S.C. 6103(a). Other than time for acceptance and Effective Date as set forth in Paragraph
3, any time periods provided for or dates specified in this Contract, whether preprinted, handwritten, typewritten or
inserted herein, which shall end or occur on a Saturday, Sunday, or national legal holiday (see 5 U.S.C. 6103)
shall extend until 5:00 p.m. (where the Property is located) of the next business day. Time is of the essence in
this contract.

12. Risk of Loss; Eminent Domain: lf any portion of the Property is materially damaged by casualty before closing
or Seller negotiates with a governmental authority to transfer all or part of the Property in lieu of eminent domain
proceedings or an eminent domain proceeding is initiated, Seller will promptly inform Buyer. Either party may
terminate this contract by written notice to the other within 10 days after Buyer's receipt of Seller's notification,
and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned, failing which Buyer will close in accordance with this contract and receive
all payments made by the governmental authority or insurance company, if any.

13. Force Majeure: Seller or Buyer will not be required to perform any obligation under this contract or be liable to
each other for damages so long as the performance or non-performance of the obligation is delayed, caused, or
prevented by an act of God or force majeure. An "act of God or "force majeure" is defined as hurricanes,
earthquakes, floods, fire, unusual transportation delays, wars, insurrections, and any other cause not reasonably
within the control of Seller or Buyer and which by the exercise of due diligence the non-performing party is unable
in whole or in part to prevent or overcome. All time periods, including Closing Date, will be extended for the period
that the act of God or force majeure is in place. However, in the event that such act of God or force majeure event
continues beyond 30 days, either party may terminate this contract by delivering written notice to the other; and
Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned.

14. Notices: All notices will be in writing and delivered to the parties and Broker by mail, personal delivery, or
electronic means. Buyer's failure to timely deliver written notice to Seller, when such notice is required by
this contract, regarding any contingency will render that contingency null and void, and this contract will
be construed as if the contingency did not exist. Any notice, document, or item delivered to or received by
an attorney or licensee (including a transactions broker) representing a party will be as effective as if
delivered to or received by that party.

15. Complete Agreement; Persons Bound: This contract is the entire agreement between Seller and Buyer.
Except for brokerage agreements, no prior or present agreements will bind Seller, Buyer, or Broker unless
incorporated into this contract. Modifications of this contract will not be binding unless in writing, signed or
initialed, and delivered by the party to be bound. Electronic signatures will be acceptable and binding. This
contract, signatures, initials, documents referenced in this contract, counterparts, and written modifications
communicated electronically or on paper will be acceptable for all purposes, including delivery, and will be binding.
Handwritten or typewritten terms inserted in or attached to this contract prevail over preprinted terms. lf any
provision of this contract is or becomes invalid or unenforceable, all remaining provisions will continue to be fully
effective. Seller and Buyer will use diligence and good faith in performing all obligations under this contract. This
contract will not be recorded in any public record. The terms "Seller," "Buyer," and "Broker" may be singular or
plural. This contract is binding on the heirs, administrators, executors, personal representatives, and assigns, if
permitted, of Seller, Buyer, and Broker.

16. Default and Dispute Resolution: This contract will be construed under Florida law. This Paragraph will survive
closing or termination of this contract.
(a) Seller Default: lf Seller fails, neglects, or refuses to perform Seller's obligations under this contract, Buyer

may elect to receive a return of Buyer's deposit(s) without thereby waiving any action for damages resulting

eryur S4 ) (-) and Seller ( ) (-) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 5 of 8 pages.

VAC-13 Rev2i20
Serial#: 01 l2l5-8001 61-3630923

@2020 F lotida Reallors@

Form
Simplicity

ElecronicallySrgned lsing esignonliner! I Session lD :0ed27ef-f583-427f"87a2-593c19517334 I 59



277 from Seller's breach and may seek to recover such damages or seek specific performance. Seller will also be278 liable for the full amount of the brokerage fee.
279 (b) Buyer Default: lf Buyer fails, neglects, or refuses to perform Buyer's obligations under this contract,280 including payment of deposit(s), within the time(s) specified, Seller may elect to recover and retain the281 deposit(s), paid and agreed to be paid, for the account of Seller as agreed upon liquidated damages,282 consideration for execution of this contract, and in full settlement of any claims, whereupon Seller and Buyer283 will be relieved from all further obligations under this contract; or Seller, at Seller's option, may proceed in284 equity to enforce Seller's rights under this contract.

285 17. Attorney's Fees; Costs: ln any litigation permitted by this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to386 recover from the non-prevailing party costs and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred in conducting387 the litigation. This Paragraph 17 shall survive Closing or termination of this Contract.

288 18. Escrow Agent; Closing Agent: Seller and Buyer authorize Escrow Agent and closing agent (collectively
28s "Agent") to receive, deposit, and hold funds and other items in escrow and, subject to Collection, disburse them29o upon proper authorization and in accordance with Florida law and the terms of this contract, including disbursing291 brokerage fees. "Collection" or "Collected" means any checks tendered or received have become aciually and 

-
2s2 finally collected and deposited in the account of Agent. The parties agree that Agent will not be liable to any person2e3 for misdelivery of escrowed items to Seller or Buyer, unless the misdelivery is due to Agent's willful breach of this2e4 contract or-gross negligence. lf Agent interpleads the subject matter of the escrow, Agent will pay the filing fees295 and costs from the deposit and will recover reasonable attorneys' fees and costs to be paid from the escrowed296 funds or equivalent and charged and awarded as court costs in favor of the prevailing party.

2e7 19' Professional Advice; Broker Liability: Broker advises Seller and Buyer to verify all facts and representations2sB that are important to them and to consult an appropriate professional for legal advice (for example, interpreting this2se contract, determining the effect of laws on the Property and this transaction, status of title, foreign investor300 reporting requirements, the effect of property lying partially or totally seaward of the CCCL, etc.) and for tax,301 property condition, environmental, and other specialized advice. Buyer acknowledges that Broker does not reside302 in the Property and that all representations (oral, written, or othenruise) by Broker are based on Seller303 representations or public records. Buyer agrees to rely solely on Seller, professional inspectors, and304 government agencies for verification of the Property condition and facts that materially affect Property305 value. Seller and Buyer respectively will pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable altorneys' fees at all306 levels, incurred by Broker and Broker's officers, directors, agents, and employees in connection with or arising307 from Seller's or Buyer's misstatement or failure to perform contractual obligations. Seller and Buyer hold308 harmless and release Broker and Broker's officers, directors, agents, and employees from all liability for loss or309 damage based on (i) Seller's or Buyer's misstatement or failure to perform contractual obligations; (ii) the use or310 display of listing data by third parties, including, but not limited to, photographs, images, graphics, video31'1 recordings, virtualtours, drawings, written descriptions, and remarks related to the Property; (iii) Broke/s312 performance, at Seller's or Buyer's request, of any task beyond the scope of services regulated by Chapter 475,s'l3 Florida Statutes, as amended, including Broker's referral, recommendation, or retention of any vendor; (iv)314 products or services provided by any vendor; and (v) expenses incurred by any vendor. Seller and Buyer each315 assume full responsibility for selecting and compensating their respective vendors. This Paragraph will not relieve316 Broker of statutory obligations. For purposes of this Paragraph, Broker will be treated as a party to this contract.t1r This Paragraph will survive closing.

3'18

319

320
321

322

323

324

325
326

327

328
329

330 -

331

20. Commercial Real Estate Sales Gommission Lien Act: lf the Property is commercial real estate as defined by
Section 475.701, Florida Statutes, the following disclosure will apply: The Florida Commerciat Real Estate Sates
Commission Lien Act provides that when a broker has earned a commission by performing licensed services
under a brokerage agreement with you, the broker may claim a lien against your net sales proceeds for the
broker's commission. The broker's lien rights under the act cannot be waived before the commission is earned.

21. Brokers: The licensee(s) and brokerage(s) named below are collectively referred to as "Broker." Instruction to
closing agent: Seller and Buyer direct Closing Agent to disburse at Closing the full amount of the brokerage
fees as specifled in separate brokerage agreements with the parties and cooperative agreements between ihe
Brokers, except to the extent Broker has retained such fees from the escrowed funds. This Paragraph will not be
used to modify any MLS or other offer of compensation made by Seller or listing broker to cooperating brokers.

Donna J Hatcher 31 91 367 Linda J Cramer 679073
Seller's Sales Associate/License No Buyer's Sales Associate/License No

auy",(J 1 (--) and Seller ( ) (-) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 6 of 8 pages
VAC-13 Rev2/20

Serial#: 0 l l215-800'l61-3690923
@2020 Florida Realtorso

E,eetmnically Signed using esignontiners I Sessio^ tD:0ed27et-t,a\427f-87a2-593c19517334 l

H\ Form
Simplicity

60



332
333 *

334

335

336.
337

338

339.
340

341

342*
343

344
345

346

347.
348.
349

350 -

351

352
353

354

355

356

357

358

359

360

361

362

363

364

365

Jbb

367.
368

369.

370

371

372.

373.

374.

375.

376

377.

378*

dhatcher@c2 1 affil iates. com
Seller's Sales Associate Email Address

Seller's Sales Associate Phone Number

Harriett Downs Real Estate LLC
Listing Brokerage

147 North Main Street, Williston, FL 32696

I i nd ajane@hdownsreal estate. com
Buyer's Sales Associate Email Address

Buyer's Sales Associate Phone Number

Harriett Downs Real Estate LLC
Buyer's Brokerage

147 North Main Street, Williston, FL 32696
Listing Brokerage Address Buyer's Brokerage Address

22. Addenda: The following additional terms are included in the attached addenda and incorporated into this Contract
(Check if applicable)
n A. Back-up Contract
n B. Other

23. AdditionalTerms

COUNTER-OFFER/REJECTION

E Seller counters Buyer's offer (to accept the counter-offer, Buyer must sign or initial the counter-offered terms and
deliver a copy of the acceptance to Seller).
n Seller rejects Buyer's offer

This is intended to be a legally binding contract. lf not fully understood, seek the advice of an attorney before

Dale: 211812O21

Print name NAJAH JIAZ

Buyer: Date

Print name

Buyer's address for purpose of notice:

Address: 724 E PAINT STREET Washington Court House, OH 43160

379.

380.

381 *

382"

Phone: Fax: Email: nflahz@yahoo.com

Seller: Date

Print name

Seller: Date:

Print name

ery"r. 8/l (-) and Seller ( ) (-) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 7 of 8 pages

VAC-13 Rev2/20
Serial#i 01 121 5{001 6l-3690923

@2020 Florida Realtors@

Elecroni€lly Srgned using esignonlinen I Session lD : 0ed27ef-f583{27f"87a2-593c19517334 |

Form
Simplicity

61



383

384.

385"

Seller's address for purpose of notice:

Address:

Phone: Email:

Effective Date: (The date on which the last party signed or initialed and delivered the
final offer or counter offer.)

Fax:

386.
387

Florida REALToRSe makes no representalion as to the legal validity or adequacy of any provision of this form in any specilic transaclion. This standardized form shouldnot be used in complex transaclions or with extensive rideis or addiiions. This foin is aviilable for use by the enlire'rell estate inCustry and is nol intended to identifrT the
user as REALTOR'. REALTOR'.is a registered collective membership mark which may be used only by ieal estate licensees who are members of the NATIONAL
ASSoclATloN oF REALToRS'and who subscribe to its code of Ethics. The copyrig'ht laws of Uniled States (17 U,s. Code) forbid the unauthorized reproduction of thisform by any means including facsimile or computerized forms.

auv", yt 
) (-) and Seller ( )( )acknowledge receiptof a copy of this page, which is 8 of 8 pages.

VAC-13 Rev2/20
Serial#: 01 I 21 5-8001 61 -3690923

@2020 Florida Realtorso

Form
Simplicity

Elecircni€lly Slgned using esignontinerd I Sessiont0 tO.d27ef-l,B3427f_87a2-SS3c19517334 I

E
x

62



Ameritrade

tc-669"s9.J.)

] iT.IERIiRADE
\/tstorr oF;D n'"'ERtTRnir r\lJ
) 80x ?2i)9
\|AHA, NE 68103.3?SS
) Ameritade C/c'.:tnc Ix; i.lgrxbi:r Sr.trC

Statement Reporting Periocl
01i01/21 - 01r31/?l

Statement for Account # 755-814319
r\'\.4il JtAa
i:"1 e rairt ST
!'ii.si{rNGTON couRT HousE. oH 43160-1617

:i i t:: ffi
Current

Val!e
(s36,237.i4)

184,230.00

105,662.21

s253,655.07

T7.O%

Current

(911,773.70)
(189,969.28)

165,603.71

(e7.e6)

0.09

Prior
Value

(si 1,n3.70)

150,700.00

72,973.41

$211,899.71

YTD

($11,773.70)

(18e,96e.28)

165,603.71

Period

- .c,he!ls
(s?4,463.44)

s

Estimated
lncome

Estimated
Yleld

%
nvestmant
,'largin Loar,

rsrc Dep Acct (lDA)

lloney Market

ihon Balance
;tocks
;hort Stocks
:ixed lncome
)ptions
ihort Options
,utual Funds

)ther
'otal

largln Equity

)penlng Balance
iecurities Purchased

;ecurities Sold
:unds Deposited
:unds Disbursed

ne,ome

ixpense

)lher

)losing Balance

33,530.00 22.2%

32,688.80 44.8o/o

$4'!,755.36 19.7% $ 0.00 0.0%

Non
Reportable YTD

s $

(82.e6) (82.e6)

(15.00)(15.00)

PortfolbADcadon

Options
32.4o/o

Cost Easis As Of - 01/:l'lr2l -
Unrealized Gains
Unrealized Losses

Funds Deposited/(Oisbursed) m
lncomd(Expenso)rc

Y$

ch

llargin Loa 'oan
r1.1%

Stocks
56.5%

3180,tt3.8
r25,129.5
(rs,4212;

(97.9(

0.c

:s

lncome
Dividends

lnterest

Other

Expense
lnterest

Fees

Other

Securities

"To vlaw t.alh.d g6lnr rnd lori.t lor your lccdnl. heh .l
www.tdamerhradc.com rnd vldl lily Aocount > Cdt 8rb'(e7.96)

0.09

($36,237.14) Net

Performance Summary

($36,237.14)

page I ol 12

($82.s6) ($1s.oo) ($e7.e6)

63



*2
CiW Manaqer

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subiect:
Attachments:

Follow Up Flag:
Flag Status:

Marc Pompeo <marc@hdownsrealestate.com>

Monday, February 22,2021 3:54 PM

City Manager
CJ Zimoski
Another Offer - 30 Acres outside City limits
Estimated Settlement Costs-2.pdf; Vacant Land Contract - VAC-11 (version 4).pdf; Pre-

Qual Letter - Hanner.pdf

Follow up
Completed

Hi Jackie,
I have attached another offer on the City's 30 acres in Bronson. I have included an Estimated Cost form showing the
breakdown of this offer.
This offer is for the full asking price however, this buyer will require financing for their purchase. I've included their pre-
qual letter from Farm Credit.
The contingencies of this offer are:
Buyer's financing with loan commitment within 30 days
Buyer's feasibility study within 30 days

Whichever offer will work, please have all pages initialed as indicated for Seller and sign as marked for Seller on Page 7

Please let me know if there are any questions or concerns.
Thank you,
Marc

Marc Pompeo - Broker/Owner
Harriett Downs Real Estate LLC

www. H DownsReal Estate.com
147 N. Main Street, Williston, FL 32696

office: 352-528-4400
cell: 352-538-5551
tax: 877-600-0291

City Manager wrote on 2/t6/2021 L1:46 AM:

We have been using LevyTitle for closing on other properties. Jackie

From : Ma rc Pompeo <m a rc@ hdownsrea lestate.com>
Sent: Saturday, February 13, 2027 3:24 PM
To: City Manager <citv. man ager@wil I istonfl.ors>
Subject: Closing Agent - 30 Acres outside City limits

Hello Jackie,
Please advise on who you would like to use as a closing agent for this sale.

Thank you,
Marc

1

64



Marc Pompeo - Broker/Owner
Harriett Downs Real Estate LLC

www. HDownsReal Estate.com
147 N. Main Street, Williston, FL 32696

office: 352-528-4400
cell: 352-538-5551
faxz 877-600-0291

City Manager wrote on 2/4/202L 9:11 AM:

Marc, attached is the listing agreement signed by both Justin Head and myself. Please
move forward with listing this property. Thank you for all you do!

Jackie E. Gorman
City Manager
City of '$Tillisron

(352) 528.3060 ext. 103

PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Under Florida low, e-mail oddresses are public record. tf you
do not want your e-moil address releosed in response to a public records request, do not
send electronic mail to this public entity. lnstead, contact this office by phone or in
person. Section 668.6076

Total Control Panel

To: citv.manager@willistonfl.ors Remove this sender from my allow list

From: marc@hdownsrealestate.com

You received this message because the sender is on your ollow list.

Login

2

65



Seller:

HARRIETT DOWNS TEAI ESTATE tIC
Licensed Real Estate Broker

l4Z North Main Street
Williston, Florida 32696

3 5 ?.s 28.4400
Branch Office 352.528.5515

ESTIMATED SETTLEMENT COSTS

City of Williston Buyer: ANDREW&CAROLYNSUEHANNER

30 Acres NE I I 5 Street, Bronson, FL 32621Property Address: Closing Date: April 2,2021

$ 125,000.00

3,000.00

28,250.00

93,750.00

TOTAL $ 125,000.00

TPURCHASE PRICE:

Binder deposit

Cash at closing
Ncw I st mortgagc or mortgagc assumcd

Purchase money mortgage or 2nd assumed

$

TSELLER'S COSTS:

Real Estate Sales Commission
Abstracting Costs or Owners Title Insurance Policy
Documentary Stamps on Deed (.70 per $100)
Attorney's Fee (estimated)

Preparation of Deed and/or Satisfaction
Record Satisfaction

20 Real Estate Taxes Prorated to closing
rPoGGie costs by contract provisions

$ 6,2s0.00

1,245.00

875.00

nla

Tcrmite treatmcnt and/or repair (up to 1.5% of salcs price)
Repairs or replacement (up to 1.5% of sales price)

0.00

0.00

TOTAL $ 8,370.00

+BIJYER'S COSTS:

Owncrs Titlc lnsurance Policy/Attomcy's Opinion

Mortgagee's Title Insurance Policy

Intangible Tu on Mortgage (S.002)

Documentary Stamps on Notc ($.35 per $100.)

Appraisal Fee or Application Fee

Swey
Mortgage Transfcr Fee on Assumption

Temite Insp€ction

Mobile Home Title Trmsfer (per side)

$

TOTAL $

.BTIYER'S ESTIMATED MONTHLY PAYMENTS:

Principal and Interest

l/12 annual real cstatc ta
l/12 annual hazrd insurance premium

I /l 2 mortgage insurance premium

$

TOTAL $

.SELLER'S ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS:

Purchase Price

Less: Existingmortgages
Seller's cstimated closing costs

Buyer's costs (if applicable)

$

NET $ TO SELLER (less taxes prorated to closing)

125,000.00

0.00

8,370.00

$ I16,630.00

We acknowledgc that the above costs arc cstimates madc by the agent and that the finat costs will be detennined by the closing agent.

Seller: Date:

Seller:
rcv 12-16

Form
SimplicityPreparedby:MarcPompeo I HadenDownsRealEstateLLC I marc@hdownsreal€state.@m I

Date:

t*66



dotloop signature verification:.illr) rr!r/(1.\V2Y 0y{ji\!l rhlT

Vacant Land Contract

1. Sale and Purchase: crryoFwrI,lrsroN

llLtr$ i
6l Iq]\1 I tHoMAscnouP

ANd AUINTW PATRICK HANNER ANd CAROLYN SUE HANNER
(the "parties") agree to sell and buy on the terms and conditions specified below the property ("Property")
described as:
Address: 8515 NE 115th st. Bronson, EL 3262r
Legal Description: 29-1,7-L7 0030.00 ACRES W3/4 0F SWU4 0F NE1/4 0R BOOK 996 PAGE 196

dli? fi*ridaRealtors'

("Selle/')
("Buye/')

1r
2r
3

4

5r
6|
7

8

9

10

11r
12*
13

14*

15

16*
17r
18r
19r
20,

SEC zg II\NP II.T /RNG Tz of t evy County, Florida. Real Property lD No.: o3234oo2oo

including all improvements existing on the Property and the following additional property:

2. Purchase Price: (U.S. currency) g rzs,ooo.oo
All deposits will be made payable to "Escrow Agent" named below and held in escrow by:
Escrow Agent's Name: FLoRTDA LEGAI rrrlE LLc
Escrow Agent's Contact Person: ASHLTE LUcKy
Escrow Age nt's Address: 404s Nw43RD sTREETSUTTEB. cAINESVTLLEFL 32606
Escrow Agent's Phone:,3s2-74s-73o0
Escrow Agent's Email:

(a) lnitial deposit ($0 if left blank) (Check if applicable)
E accompanies offer
E will be delivered to Escrow Agent within days (3 days if left blank)
after Effective Date

(b) Additional deposit will be delivered to Escrow Agent (Gheck if applicable)
tr within days (10 days if left blank) after Effective Date
tr within 

-days 

(3 days if left blank) after expiration of Feasibility Study Period
(c) Total Financino lg @ee Paragraph 6) (express as a dollar amount or percentage)..........

.... $ s,ooo.oo

(d) Other:
(e) Balance to close (not including Buyer's closing costs, prepaid items, and prorations)

to be paid at closing by wire transfer or other Collected funds........... $ .zs,zso.oo

(0 tr (Complete only if purchase price will be determined based on a per unit cost instead of a fixed price.) The
unit used to determine the purchase price is E lot tr acre E square foot E other (specify):
prorating areas of less than a full unit. The purchase price will be $._per unit based on a
calculation of total area of the Property as certified to Seller and Buyer by a Florida licensed surveyor in
accordance with Paragraph 8(c). The following rights of way and other areas will be excluded from the
calculation:

3. Time for Acceptance; Effective Date: Unless this offer is signed by Seller and Buyer and an executed copy
delivered to all parties on or before ozl24lzoz1, , this offer will be withdrawn and Buyer's deposit, if
any, will be returned. The time for acceptance of any counter-offer will be 3 days after the date the counter-offer is
delivered. The "Effective Date" of this contract is the date on which the last one of the Seller and Buyer has
signed or initialed and delivered this offer or the final counter-offer.

4. Closing Date: This transaction willclose ono4rcznozr ("Closing Date"), unless specifically
extended by other provisions of this contract. The Closing Date will prevail over all other time periods including, but
not limited to, Financing and Feasibility Study periods. However, if the Closing Date occurs on a Saturday,
Sunday, or national legal holiday, it will extend to 5:00 p.m. (where the Property is located) of the next business
day. ln the event insurance underwriting is suspended on Closing Date and Buyer is unable to obtain property
insurance, Buyer may postpone closing for up to 5 days after the insurance underwriting suspension is lifted. lf
this transaction does not close for any reason, Buyer will immediately return all Seller provided documents and
other items.

5. Extension of Glosing Date: lf Paragraph 6(b) is checked and Closing Funds from Buyer's lender(s) are not
available on Closing Date due to Consumer Financial Protection Bureau Closing Disclosure delivery requirements

21

22.
23.
24r
25

26r
27.
28r
29)
30

31 r

$
$
$

9 750.00J,

32r
33r
34.
35

36

37*

38

39'
40
41

42

43

44

45
46
47
48

49

50

51

52

auye, E ,T,I E*T,l and setter
vAc_ 1 3:03 Ft€s_p/9bPrr, EsT

dotloop verdouoop venlted

acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 1 of 8 pages
@2020 Florida Realtors@

67



dotloopsiEnatureverification:.lrl,r ir i1r.l':,r, ..i':'

53

54
(9f PB Requirements), if applicable, then Closing Date shall be extended for such period necessary to satisfy
CFPB Requirements, provided such period shall not exceed 10 days.

Financing: (Gheck as applicable)
(a) tr Buyer will pay cash for the Property with no financing contingency.
(b) E This contract is contingent on Buyer qualifying for and obtaining the commitment(s) or approval(s) specified

below ("Financing") within so days afier Effective Date (Closing Date or 30 days after Effective Date,
whichever occurs first, if left blank) ("Financing Period"). Buyer will apply for Financing within s days
after Effective Date (5 days if left blank) and will timely provide any and all credit, employment, financial, and
other information required by the lender. lf Buyer, after using diligence and good faith, cannot obtain the
Financing within the Financing Period, either party may terminate this contract and Buyer's deposit(s) will be
returned.
(1) E New Financing: Buyer will secure a commitment for new third party financing for g

ot'ls o/o of the Purchase price at (Check one) E a fixed rate not exceeding % Ean
adjustable interest rate not exceeding % at origination (a fixed rate at the prevailing interest rate
based on Buyer's creditworthiness if neither choice is selected). Buyer will keep Seller and Broker fully
informed of the loan application status and progress and authorizes the lender or mortgage broker to
disclose all such information to Seller and Broker.

(2) tr Seller Financing: Buyer will execute a E

6.

Seller in the amount of
first E second purchase money note and mortgage to
bearing annual interest al o/o and payable as follows:

55

56r
57t
58r
59t
60

61

62

63

64*
65r
66*
67

68

69

70*
71 *
72*
73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82t
83*
84t
85r
86r
87'
88

89.
90f
91

92

The mortgage, note, and any security agreement will be in a form acceptable to Seller and will follow
forms generally accepted in the county where the Property is located; will provide for a late payment fee
and acceleration at the mortgagee's option if Buyer defaults; will give Buyer the right to prepay without
penalty all or part of the principal at any time(s) with interest only to date of payment; will be due on
conveyance or sale; will provide for release of contiguous parcels, if applicable; and will require Buyer to
keep liability insurance on the Property, with Seller as additional named insured. Buyer authorizes Seller
to obtain credit, employment, and other necessary information to determine creditworthiness for the
financing. Seller will, within 10 days after Effective Date, give Buyer written notice of whether or not Seller
will make the loan.

(3) tr Mortgage Assumption: Buyer will take title subject to and assume and pay existing first mortgage to

LN# in the approximate amount of $ currently payable at
$._ per month, including principal, interest, taxes and insurance, and having a
E fixed E other (describe)
interest rate of Yo not esca upon assumption. Any n mortgage
will be adjusted in the balance due at closing with no adjustment to purchase price. Buyer will purchase
Seller's escrow account dollar for dollar, lf the interest rate upon transfer exceeds % or the
assumption/transfer fee exceeds either party may elect to pay tl're excess, failing
which this contract will terminate; and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned. lf the lender disapproves Buyer,
this contract will terminate; and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned

7. Assignability: (Gheck one) Buyer El may assign and thereby be released from any further liability under this
contract, E may assign but not be released from liability undei tnis contract, or Mmay not assign ihis contract.

8. Title:

93*
94*

95i
96f
97

98
gg'

100

101

102
103

104 *
105 r
106

107 t
108

nvey marketable title to the Property by M statutory warranty
deed

b
of liens, easements,

and encumbrances of record or known to Seller, closing; covenants,
restrictions, and public utility easements of record; existing zoning and governmental regulations; and (list any
other matters to which title will be subject)
provided there exists at closing no violation of the foregoing.
(a) Title Evidence: The party who pays for the owner's title insurance policy will select the closlng agent and pay

for the title search, including tax and lien search (including municipal lien search) if performed, and all other
fees charged by closing agent. Seller will deliver to Buyer, at
(Check one) El Seller's E Buyer's expense and
(Check one)
(Gheck one)

E within so days after Effective Date E at least days before Closing Date,

(11 V a title insurance commitment by a Florida licensed title insurer setting forth those matters to be
discharged by Seller at or before closing and, upon Buyer recording the deed, an owner's policy in the

Seller has the legal capacity to and will co
EI special warranty deed E other (specify)

0

ery", \W@:and Seller [] D acknowtedge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 2 of 8 pages.vAc-1toti?xsJ#Esvjlld o2o2o Ftorida Reatrors@

68



dotloop signature verification: .il llr i rsi q\\.'.lV il;{ itu].7h1,,

109

110

111

1',t2r
113

114

115

116

117

118

119r
120
121

122,
123
124

125

126
127

'128

129
'130

131

132

133

amount of the purchase price for fee simple title subject only to the exceptions stated above. lf Buyer is
paying for the owner's title insurance policy and Seller has an owner's policy, Seller will deliver a copy to
Buyer within 15 days after Effective Date.

(2) tr an abstract of title, prepared or brought current by an existing abstract firm or certified as correct by an
existing firm. However, if such an abstract is not available to Seller, then a prior owner's title policy
acceptable to the proposed insurer as a base for reissuance of coverage may be used. The prior policy will
include copies of all policy exceptions and an update in a format acceptable to Buyer from the policy
effective date and certified to Buyer or Buyer's closing agent together with copies of all documents
recited in the prior policy and in the update. lf such an abstract or prior policy is not available to Seller,
then (1) above will be the title evidence.

(b) Title Examination: After receipt of the title evidence, Buyer will, within ro days (10 days if left blank) but
no later than Closing Date, deliver written notice to Seller of title defects. Title will be deemed acceptable to
Buyer if (i) Buyer fails to deliver proper notice of defects or (ii) Buyer delivers proper written notice and Seller
cures the defects within go days (30 days if left blank) ("Cure Period") afier receipt of the notice. lf the
defects are cured within the Cure Period, closing will occur within 10 days after receipt by Buyer of notice of
such cure. Seller may elect not to cure defects if Seller reasonably believes any defect cannot be cured within
the Cure Period. lf the defects are not cured within the Cure Period, Buyer will have 10 days after receipt of
notice of Seller's inability to cure the defects to elect whether to terminate this contract or accept title subject
to existing defects and close the transaction without reduction in purchase price.

(c) Survey: Buyer may, at Buyer's expense, have the Property surveyed and must deliver written notice to
Seller, within 5 days after receiving survey but not later than 5 days before Closing Date, of any
encroachments on the Property, encroachments by the Property's improvements on other lands, or deed
restriction or zoning violations. Any such encroachment or violation will be treated in the same manner as a
title defect and Seller's and Buyer's obligations will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 8(b).

(d) lngress and Egress: Seller warrants that the Property presently has ingress and egress.

9. Property Condition: Seller will deliver the Property to Buyer at closing in its present "as is" condition, with
conditions resulting from Buyer's lnspections and casualty damage, if any, excepted. Seller will not engage in or
permit any activity that would materially alter the Property's condition without the Buyer's prior written consent.
(a) lnspections: (Check (1) or (2))

(1) E Feasibility Study: Buyer will, at Buyer's expense and within days (30 days if left blank)
("Feasibility Study Period")after Effective Date and in Buyer's sole andEbsolute discretion, determine
whether the Property is suitable for Buyer's intended use. During the Feasibility Study Period, Buyer may
conduct a Phase 1 environmental assessment and any other tests, analyses, surveys, and investigations
("lnspections") that Buyer deems necessary to determine to Buyer's satisfaction the Property's
engineering, architectural, and environmental properties; zoning and zoning restrictions; subdivision
statutes; soil and grade; availability of access to public roads, water, and other utilities; consistency with
local, state, and regional growth management plans; availability of permits, government approvals, and
licenses; and other inspections that Buyer deems appropriate. lf the Property must be rezoned, Buyer will
obtain the rezoning from the appropriate government agencies. Seller will sign all documents Buyer is
required to file in connection with development or rezoning approvals. Seller gives Buyer, its agents,
contractors, and assigns, the right to enter the Property at any time during the Feasibility Study Period for
the purpose of conducting lnspections, provided, however, that Buyer, its agents, contractors, and assigns
enter the Property and conduct lnspections at their own risk. Buyer will indemnifu and hold Seller
harmless from losses, damages, costs, claims, and expenses of any nature, including attorneys' fees,
expenses, and liability incurred in application for rezoning or related proceedings, and from liability to any
person, arising from the conduct of any and all lnspections or any work authorized by Buyer. Buyer will
not engage in any activity that could result in a construction lien being filed against the Property without
Seller's prior written consent. lf this transaction does not close, Buyer will, at Buyer's expense, (i) repair
all damages to the Property resulting from the lnspections and return the Property to the condition it was in
before conducting the lnspections and (ii) release to Seller all reports and other work generated as a
result of the lnspections.

Before expiration of the Feasibility Study Period, Buyer must deliver written notice to Seller of Buyer's
determination of whether or not the Property is acceptable. Buyer's failure to comply with this notice
requirement will constitute acceptance of the Property as suitable for Buyer's intended use in its "as is"
condition. lf the Property is unacceptable to Buyer and written notice of this fact is timely delivered to
Seller, this contract will be deemed terminated, and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned.

134

135

136

137

138 r
139

140

141

142
143

144

145
146
147

148

149

150

151

152
153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162
163

164

auy., ffi ffiand Seller [] fI acknowledge rec€ipt of a copy of this page, which is 3 of 8 pages.
VAc-f",,."1ff"!6#ffiY"lll"o @2020 Florida Realtors@

69



dotloop si8natureveriflcation;,r,l,r i.. (t!\'.i r a,,ri,r.:ljr

'165 r
166

167

168

169

170

17'l

172

173
174

175

176
177

178
179

180

181

182
183

184

185 r

(2) tr No Feasibility Study: Buyer is satisfied that the Property is suitable for Buyer's purposes, including
being satisfied that either public sewerage and water are available to the Property or the Property will be
approved for the installation of a well and/or private sewerage disposal system and that existing zoning
and other pertinent regulations and restrictions, such as subdivision or deed restrictions, concurrency,
groMh management, and environmental conditions, are acceptable to Buyer" This contract is not
contingent on Buyer conducting any further investigations.

(b) Government Regulations: Changes in government regulations and levels of service which affect Buyer's
intended use of the Property will not be grounds for terminating this contract if the Feasibility Study Period has
expired or if Paragraph 9(aX2) is selected.

(c) Flood Zone: Buyer is advised to verify by survey, with the lender, and with appropriate government agencies
which flood zone the Property is in, whether flood insurance is required, and what restrictions apply to
improving the Property and rebuilding in the event of casualty.

(d) Coastal Construction Gontrol Line ("GGCL"): lf any part of the Property lies seaward of the CCCL as
defined in Section 161 .053, Florida Statutes, Seller will provide Buyer with an affidavit or survey as required
by law delineating the line's location on the Property, unless Buyer waives this requirement in writing. The
Property being purchased may be subject to coastal erosion and to federal, state, or local regulations that
govern coastal property, including delineation of the CCCL, rigid coastal protection structures, beach
nourishment, and the protection of marine turtles. Additional information can be obtained from the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection, including whether there are significant erosion conditions associated
with the shore line of the Property being purchased.
E Buyer waives the right to receive a CCCL affidavit or survey.

10. Closing Procedure; Costs: Closing will take place in the county where the Property is located and may be
conducted by mail or electronic means. lf title insurance insures Buyer for title defects arising between the title
binder effective date and recording of Buyer's deed, closing agent will disburse at closing the net sale proceeds to
Seller (in local cashier's check if Seller requests in writing at least 5 days before closing) and brokerage fees to
Broker as per Paragraph 21. ln addition to other expenses provided in this contract, Seller and Buyer will pay the
costs indicated below.
(a) Seller Gosts:

Taxes on deed
Recording fees for documents needed to cure title
Title evidence (if applicable under Paragraph 8)
Estoppel Fee(s)
Other:

(b) Buyer C-sG:
Taxes and recording fees on notes and mortgages
Recording fees on the deed and financing statements
Loan expenses
Title evidence (if applicable under Paragraph 8)
Lender's title policy at the simultaneous issue rate
lnspections
Survey
lnsurance
Other:

186

187

188

189

190

191

192
193

194,
195

1 96*
197*,
198

199

200

201

202

203

204

205
206
207,
208
209
210

211

212

213

214
215
216,
217

218
2',t9

220
221

(c) Prorations: The followi ng items will be made current and prorated as of the day before Closing Date: real
estate taxes (including special benefit tax liens imposed by a CDD), interest, bonds, assessments, leases, and
other Property expenses and revenues. lf taxes and assessments for the current year cannot be determined,
the previous year's rates will be used with adjustment for any exemptions.

(d) Special Assessment by Public Body: Regarding special assessments imposed by a public body, Seller will
pay (i) the full amount of liens that are certified, confirmed, and ratified before closing and (ii) the amount of the
last estimate of the assessment if an improvement is substantially completed as of Effective Date but has not
resulted in a lien before closing; and Buyer will pay all other amounts. lf special assessments may be paid in
installments, E Seller EI Buyer (Buyer if left blank) will pay installments due after closing. lf Selter is
checked, Seller will pay the assessment in full before or at the time of closing. Public body does not include a
Homeowners' or Condominium Association.

(E) PROPERTY TAX DISCLOSURE SUMMARY: BUYER SHOULD NOT RELY ON THE SELLER'S CURRENT
PROPERry TAXES AS THE AMOUNT OF PROPERTY TAXES THAT BUYER MAY BE OBLIGATED TO
PAY IN THE YEAR SUBSEQUENT TO PURCHASE. A CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP OR PROPERry

,yy", @ ffiand Seller tl D acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 4 of I pages.
VAC-13:03 R,et62/e0pM Esr @2020 Florida Realtors@dotloop verifdop verified

70



dotloop signature verification: .lr il) iI j,'il!V2\' {)jl jil-,rbr:

222

223

224

225
226

227

228
229

230
231

232

233
234

235
236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243
244

245

246

247

248
249
250

251

252
253
254

255
256
257*
258
259
260*

261

262*
263*
264
265
266*

267 *
268

269
270*
271

272

273
274

275

276

IMPROVEMENTS TRIGGERS REASSESSMENTS OF THE PROPERTY THAT COULD RESULT IN HIGHER
PROPERTY TAXES. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING VALUATION, CONTACT THE
COUNTY PROPERry APPRAISER'S OFFICE FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

(0 Foreign lnvestment in Real Property Tax Act ("FIRPTA"): lf Seller is a "foreign person" as defined by
FIRPTA, Seller and Buyer will comply with FIRPTA, which may require Seller to provide additional cash at
closing.

(g) 1031 Exchange: lf either Seller or Buyer wish to enter into a like-kind exchange (either simultaneously with
closing or after) under Section 1031 of the lnternal Revenue Code ("Exchange"), the other party will cooperate
in all reasonable respects to effectuate the Exchange including executing documents, provided, however, that
the cooperating party will incur no liability or cost related to the Exchange and that the closing will not be
contingent upon, extended, or delayed by the Exchange.

11. Gomputation of Time: Calendar days will be used when computing time periods, except time periods of 5 days
or less. Time periods of 5 days or less will be computed without including Saturday, Sunday, or national legal
holidays specified in 5 U.S.C. 6103(a). Other than time for acceptance and Effective Date as set forth in Paragraph
3, any time periods provided for or dates specified in this Contract, whether preprinted, handwritten, typewritten or
inserted herein, which shall end or occur on a Saturday, Sunday, or national legal holiday (see 5 U.S.C. 6103)
shall extend until 5:00 p.m. (where the Property is located) of the next business day. Time is of the essence in
this contract.

1 2. Risk of Loss; Eminent Domain: lf any portion of the Property is materially damaged by casualty before closing
or Seller negotiates with a governmental authority to transfer all or part of the Property in lieu of eminent domain
proceedings or an eminent domain proceeding is initiated, Seller will promptly inform Buyer. Either party may
terminate this contract by written notice to the other within 10 days after Buyer's receipt of Seller's notification,
and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned, failing which Buyer will close in accordance with this contract and receive
all payments made by the governmental authority or insurance company, if any.

13. Force Majeure: Seller or Buyer will not be required to perform any obligation under this contract or be liable to
each other for damages so long as the performance or non-performance of the obligation is delayed, caused, or
prevented by an act of God or force majeure. An "act of God or "force majeure" is defined as hurricanes,
earthquakes, floods, fire, unusual transportation delays, wars, insurrections, and any other cause not reasonably
within the control of Seller or Buyer and which by the exercise of due diligence the non-performing party is unable
in whole or in part to prevent or overcome. All time periods, including Closing Date, will be extended for the period
that the act of God or force majeure is in place. However, in the event that such act of God or force majeure event
continues beyond 30 days, either party may terminate this contract by delivering written notice to the other; and
Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned.

14. Notices: All notices will be in writing and delivered to the parties and Broker by mail, personal delivery, or
electronic means. Buyer's failure to timely deliver written notice to Seller, when such notice is required by
this contract, regarding any contingency will render that contingency null and void, and this contract will
be construed as if the contingency did not exist. Any notice, document, or item delivered to or received by
an attorney or licensee (including a transactions broker) representing a party will be as effective as if
delivered to or received by that party.

15. Gomplete Agreement; Persons Bound: This contract is the entire agreement between Seller and Buyer.
Except for brokerage agreements, no prior or present agreements will bind Seller, Buyer, or Broker unless
incorporated into this contract. Modifications of this contract will not be binding unless in writing, signed or
initialed, and delivered by the party to be bound. Electronic signatures will be acceptable and binding. This
contract, signatures, initials, documents referenced in this contract, counterparts, and written modifications
communicated electronically or on paper will be acceptable for all purposes, including delivery, and will be binding.
Handwritten or typewritten terms inserted in or attached to this contract prevail over preprinted terms. lf any
provision of this contract is or becomes invalid or unenforceable, all remaining provisions will continue to be fully
effective. Seller and Buyer will use diligence and good faith in performing all obligations under this contract. This
contract will not be recorded in any public record. The terms "Seller," "Buyer," and "Broker" may be singular or
plural. This contract is binding on the heirs, administrators, executors, personal representatives, and assigns, if
permitted, of Seller, Buyer, and Broker.

16. Default and Dispute Resolution: This contract will be construed under Florida law. This Paragraph will survive
closing or termination of this contract.
(a) Seller Default: lf Seller fails, neglects, or refuses to perform Seller's obligations under this contract, Buyer

may elect to receive a return of Buyer's deposit(s) without thereby waiving any action for damages resulting

euye, ffil W,,,Vl anaSetter l-h l-b ackno*ledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 5 of I pages.vAC-X3rr$ffi,{r#g$Y":il1"d o2o2o Florida Reattors@

71



dotloopsiSnatureveriflcation: ri.i,),j.,.1', i), ;.;.,.'

277
278
279
280
281

282
283
284

285
286
287

288
289

290
291

292
293
294
295
296

297
298
299

300

301

302
303

304

305

306
307

308
309

310

31 1

312
313

314
315

316

317

from Seller's breach and may seek to recover such damages or seek specific performance. Seller will also be
liable for the full amount of the brokerage fee.

(b) Buyer Default: lf Buyer fails, neglects, or refuses to perform Buyer's obligations under this contract,
including payment of deposit(s), within the time(s) specified, Seller may etect to recover and retain the
deposit(s), paid and agreed to be paid, for the account of Seller as agreed upon liquidated damages,
consideration for execution of this contract, and in full settlement of any claims, whereupon Sellei and Buyer
will be relieved from all further obligations under this contract; or Seller, at Seller's option, may proceed in
equity to enforce Seller's rights under this contract.

17. Attorney's Fees; Costs: ln any litigation permitted by this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entifled to
recover from the non-prevailing party costs and fees, including reasonable attorney;s fees, incurred in conducting
the litigation. This Paragraph 17 shall survive Closing or termination of this Contrait.

18. Escrow Agent; Closing Agent: Seller and Buyer authorize Escrow Agent and closing agent (collectively
"Agent") to receive, deposit, and hold funds and other items in escrow and, subject to Collection, disburseihem
upon proper authorization and in accordance with Florida law and the terms of this contract, including disbursing
brokerage fees. "Collection" or "Collected" means any checks tendered or received have become aciually and
finally collected and deposited in the account of Agent. The parties agree that Agent will not be liable to iny person
for misdelivery of escrowed items to Seller or Buyer, unless the misdelivery is due to Agent's willful breach of this
contract or gross negligence. lf Agent interpleads the subject matter of the escrow, Agent will pay the filing fees
and costs from the deposit and will recover reasonable attorneys' fees and costs to be paid from-the escr6wed
funds or equivalent and charged and awarded as court costs in favor of the prevailing party.

19. Professional Advice; Broker Liability: Broker advises Seller and Buyer to verify all facts and representations
that are important to them and to consult an appropriate professional for legal advite (for example, interpreting this
contract, determining the effect of laws on the Property and this transaction, status of title, foreign invesior
reporting requirements, the effect of property lying partially or totally seaward of the CCCL, etc.i and for tax,
property condition, environmental, and other specialized advice. Buyer acknowledges that Broker does not reside
in the Property and that all representations (oral, written, or othenruise) by Broker aie based on Seller
representations or public records. Buyer agrees to rely solely on Seller, professional inspectorc, and
government agencies for verification of the Property condition and facts that materially affect Property
value. Seller and B_uyer respectively will pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable aitorneys' tee's at Ltt
levels, incurred by Broker and Broker's officers, directors, agents, and employees in connection with or arising
from Seller's or Buyer's misstatement or failure to perform contractual obligitions. Seller and Buyer hold
harmless and release Broker and Broker's officers, directors, agents, and employees from all liability for loss or
damage based on (i) Seller's or Buyer's misstatement or failure to perform contractual obligations; (ii) the use or
display of listing data by third parties, including, but not limited to, photographs, images, grapnics, video
recordings, virtual tours, drawings, written descriptions, and remarks related to the Property; 1iii1 Brot<er's
performance, at Seller's or Buyer's request, of any task beyond the scope of services regutateC by Chapter 475,
Florida Statutes, as amended, including Broker's referral, recommendation, or retention oiany venbor; (iv)
products or services provided by any vendor; and (v) expenses incurred by any vendor. Sellei and Buyei each
assume full responsibility for selecting and compensating their respective vendors. This Paragraph will not relieve
Broker of statutory obligations. For purposes of this Paragraph, Broker will be treated as a party to this contract.
This Paragraph will survive closing.

20. Commercial Real Estate Sales Commission Lien Act: lf the Property is commercial real estate as defined by
Section 475.701, Florida Statutes, the following disclosure will apply: The Florida Commercial Real Estate Sales
Commission Lien Act provides that when a broker has earned a commission by performing licensed services
under a brokerage agreement with you, the broker may claim a lien against your net saleJproceeds for the
broker's commission. The broker's lien rights under the act cannot be waived before the commission is earned.

21' Brokers: The licensee(s) and brokerage(s) named below are collectively referred to as "Broker." lnstruction to
closing agent: Seller and Buyer direct Closing Agent to disburse at Closing the full amount of the brokerage
fees as specified in separate brokerage agreements with the parties and cooperative agreements between the
Brokers, except to the extent Broker has retained such fees from the escrowed funds. ihis Paragraph will not be
used to modify any MLS or other offer of compensation made by Seller or listing broker to cooplrating brokers.

Donna Church-hatcher LAURAM GUNTER
Seller's Associate/License No Buyer's Sales Associate/License No.

318

319

320

321

322

323

324
325
326
327

328,
329.
330
331

Pyy".r^@*--W--and Seller D D acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 6 of 8 pages.VAc-f"",:'"#fffiY":;lo @2020 Florida Realtors@

72



dotloop signature verification: il(llr rri.kl'!V2v 0yL jl'1-rlrtl

332
333

334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342
343

344

345

346

347'
348'
349

350r
351

352
353

354

355

356

357

358

359

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367*
368

369*

370

371

372"

373*

374*

375*

376

377*

37gi

donna@hdownsrealestate.com
Seller's Sales Associate Email Address

Seller's Sales Associate Phone Number

Harriett Downs Real Estate, LLC

laura @thomasgrouprealty.com
Buyer's Sales Associate Email Address

352-494-7393
Buyer's Sales Associate Phone Number

BETTER HOMES AND GARDENS THOMAS GROUP REALTY
Listing Brokerage Buyer's Brokerage

5346 Southwest 91 Terrace, Gainesville, FL 32608
Listing Brokerage Address Buyer's Brokerage Address

22. Addenda: The following additional terms are included in the attached addenda and incorporated into this Contract
(Check if applicable):
EA. Back-up Contract
tr B. Other

23. AdditionalTerms:

COU NTER.OFFER/REJECTION

El Seller counters Buyer's offer (to accept the counter-offer, Buyer must sign or initial the counter-offered terms and
deliver a copy of the acceptance to Seller).
EI Seller rejects Buyer's offer

This is intended to be a legally binding contract. lf not fully understood, seek the advice of an attorney before
signin

Pri nt name: awDREw pATRrcK HANNER

Buyer:

Print name:cARoLyN suE HANNER

9:01 PM EsTc-l-S.fl

Buyer's address for purpose of notice:

Address

Phone: Fax: Emai l: aphanner@yahoo.com

Selle

Print name:

379*

380*

381 *

382*

Selle

Print name:

euy", ffi ffiand Seller D d-} acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 7 of 8 pages.
VAC-1p:.03 ReE6P/geM f sr @2020 Florida Realtors@

oouoop verd@op veflIed

73



dotloop signature verificatjon: (lirr .. ,-i\!:!: (rt ):.'. ttrt

383

384*

385*

Seller's address for purpose of notice:

Address:

Phone: Fax:

396*

Email:

Effective Date: (The date on which the last party signed or initialed and delivered the
final offer or counter-offer

Florida REALTORS' makes no representation as to the legal validity or adequacy of any provision of this form in any specific transaclion. This standardized form should
not be used in complex transaclions or with eldensive riders or additions. This form is available for use by lhe entire real estate industry and is not intended to identify the
user as REALTORo. REALTORo is a registered colleclive membership mark which may be used only be real estate licensees who are members of the NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION OF REALTORSo and who subscribe to its Code of Ethics. The copyright laws of United States (17 U.S. Code) forbid the unauthorized reproduc,tion of this
form by any means including facsimile or computerized forms.

387

auyer ffi ffi andSeller
VAC-136iFffi,3lfwsr

dotloop verifdop verifi ed

t] D acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 8 of 8 pages.
@2020 Florida Realtors@

74



".^bFA*#,S-*FDIr
721 South Main Street . Trenton, Florida 32693

Phone (352) 463-2376. Fax (352) 463-741,6

Fa rmCredit FL.com

February 22,2O2I

Carolyn & Andrew Hanner

7812 SW 49th Place

Gainesville, FL 32608

Re: Loan Prequalification

Dear Mr. & Mrs. Hanner:

Based upon the information you have provided and the credit information received, you
prequalify for a loan in the amount of S93,750.00 to finance the purchase of agricultural real estate.

This pre-qualification letter does not constitute loan approval of commitment to rate, fees or
term. Any misrepresentation in the information you provided or adverse changes in your financial
position may void this pre-qualification letter. This pre-qualification is also subject to receipt of additional
documentation, acceptable appraisal, clear title and any other requirements for loan processing before a

loan decision can be made.

lf you have any questions or would like additional information, please do not hesitate to contact
me via phone or e-mail. Thank you very much for affording me the opportunity to assist you with your
purchase. I look forward to working with you!

Very truly yours,

5*W
Steven Hollingsworth, Loan Officer

NMLS #1724310

75




